
Franklin Cou ty
North Carolina

.1

Comprehensive Annual inancial Report
For the isca year ended June 30, 2008

Prepared by:
Franklin County Finance Department





v
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
o
o
Q

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

I
] C C CM





Franklin County, North Carolina

Q Table of Contents
June 30. 2008

0
Q

Exhibit Page
Introductory Section

Letter of Transmittal

Certificate of Achievement 8

O organizational chart 9

List of County Officials 10
0

Financlil Section

o Independent Auditor’s Report 12

o Management’s Discussion and Analysis IS

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Assets I 27

Statement of Activities 2 28

Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 3 30

Statement of Revenues, Expenditwrs, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 4 31

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities 4 32

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund 5 33

Statement of Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 6 34

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund
Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 7 35

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 8 36

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds 9 33



Franklin County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2008

Exhibit Page

Notes to the Financial Statements 40

Required Supplemental Financial Data

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance -

Schedule of Funding Progress 10 65

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance -

Schedule of Employer Contributions 66

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules

Major Governmental Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance - General Fund - Budget and Actual 12 69

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Baiances - Budget and Actual - School Constnjction
Projects Fund 13 76

Nonmajor Governmental Funds;

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 14 78

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Q
Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental

Funds 15 19

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances- Budget and Actual - Capital Reserve Fund 16 80

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Fire District Fund 17 81

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Emergency Telephone

System Fund 18 82

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - DEA Fund 19 83

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Golden Leaf
Foundation Project 20 84

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Aciual - Community
Development Fund 21 85



0
0

Franklin County, North Carolina

0 Table of Contents
June 30, 2008

Exhibit Page

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Revaluation Fund 22 86

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - COPS Capital
Project Fund 23 87

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes ino Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Airport Capital

o Project Fund 24 88

o Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

O Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - County Building
Project Fund 25 89

0
Q

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Revaluation Project

o Fund 26 90

Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
(Non-OAAP) - Water and Sewer Fund 27 92

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP) - Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund 28 93

Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual 29 95
(Non-GAAP) - Insurance Fund

Agency Funds

Combining Statements of Changes in Assets and Liabilities -

Agency Funds 30 97

Other Schedules

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 31 99

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-wide Levy 32 100

Secondary Market Disclosures 33 101

Ten Largest Taxpayers 34 102



0
0

Franklin County, North Carolina Q
Table of Contents

June 30, 2008 0
0

Exhibit Page

Statistical Section

Net Assets by Component 104

Changes in Net Assets 105

Net (Expense)/ Revenue 106

Fund Balance 107

Changes in Fund Balance lOB

Ratio of Net General Obligation Debt to Assessed Value and

Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita 109

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General

Obligation Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures 110

Legal Debt Margin Information Ill

Property Tax Rates - Direct and All Overlapping Governments 112

Assessed Value of Taxable Property 113

Property Tax Levies and Collections - General Fund 114

General Government Revenue by Source 115

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 116

General Governmental Expenditures by Function Ill

Computation of Direct and Underlying Debt - General Obligation Bonds 118

Demographic Statistics 119

Principal Employers 120

Construction 122

Principal Tax Payers 123

General Assessment billings and Collections 124

Operating Indicators by PunctionlProgram 125

Capital Assets Statistics by Function/Program 126

Other Statistical Infonnation 127



Franklin County. North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30. 2008

Page

Compliance Section

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

O
with Governmental Auditing Standards 129

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each MajorC) Federal Program ind internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance

C) with 0MB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation
Act 131

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major
State Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance
with Applicable Sections of 0MB Circular A-133 and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act 133

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 136

Corrective Action Plan 138

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 139

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 140



This page intentionally left blank.



0
0
0
0

Fw& KLIN COUNTY

L TTER OF RA SMITTAL



n
n

n
n

n
fl

n
o

n
fl

o
n

n
e
c
c
n
n

c
o
o
n

n
o
n
e

c
o

o
n

n
o
o
o
o
o

0
0

0
0

C
C



COUNTY OF FRANKLIN

113 Market Street • Louisburg, N.C. 27549
Office (919) 496-5994 • Fax (919) 496-2683

www.co.franklin.nc .us

December l5n 2008

To the Board of County Commissioners and Citizens of Franklin County:

O We are pleased to present the comprehensive annual financial report of Franklin County for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008. State law requires that local governments publish within six months of
the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
general accepted accounting principals (GAP?) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of

o the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these

O
representations, management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and too compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of County of Franklin’s financial statementso in conformity with GAAP. Because of the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits,

Q the County’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County’s financial statements contained herein have been audited by the independent, certified
public accounting firm of Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans and Co., a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the County of Franklin for the fiscal year ended June 30th 2008 are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disdosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principals used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Count, of Franklin’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.
The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on
the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal



requirements involving the administration of federal and state awards. These reports are contained in

the compliance section of this report

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MOM and should be read in
conjunction with it. The County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

Profile of the County

The General Assembly created Franklin County from a portion of Bute County on January 29,

1779. The County was named in honor of Benjamin Franklin who was in France requesting help for
our country during the Revolutionary War.

Franklin County encompasses 494 square miles and has a population of 56,470. There are

five municipalities, Town of Bunn, Town of Youngsville, Town of Franklinton, Town of Centerville, and

the Town of Louisburg, which serves as the county seat. The county has a commissioner! manager

form of government. In December 2004, the Board of Commissioners expanded to a seven member

board. Five members of the Board of Commissioners are elected from districts on a partisan basis
and two are elected at Large. They serve staggered four-year terms. Commissioners hold policy
making and legislative authority. They are also responsible for adopting the budget and appointing

the County Manager. The manager is responsible for implementing policies, managing daily
operations and appointing department heads.

The county provides its citizens with a wide variety of services that includes public safety,
human services, cultural and recreational opportunities and others. It is also the Home of Louisburg

College, the nation’s oldest junior college. The college was founded in 1787 and offers a strong
academic program in humanities, sciences, and business.

NC General Statutes require formal budgetary accounting for all funds. Departments of the
County are required to submit their request for funding by April 1st of each year. These requests are
used as a starting point for developing the proposed budget. The County Manager presents the
proposed budget to the Board of Commissioners by June 1st The County Board of Commissioners is

recuired to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and must adopt an annual budget by June

30 of each year. The adopted budget is prepared by fund and function (e.g., public safety).
Department heads can request transfers between line items and are approved by the County
Manager. The manager has the authority to approve transfers between the same functions; however,

he must inform the Board of Commissioners if he transfers monies outside of function appropriations.

Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund that
has an annual budget adopted. A project ordinance is used to establish a budget for a project that
extends over more than one fiscal year. Project length budget to actual comparisons for each
governmental fund that a project length budget has been adopted is also induded in this report.

MAJOR INITIATIVESICHANGES

Activities undertaken by the County during the year further confirmed the ongoing commitment

to imjroving the infrastructure by continuing some projects and initiating others. Being identified as

the 9 fastest growing county in North Carolina, the increasing population places additional demands

on the County to meet citizens’ needs for services. The year’s activities as highlighted below
demonstrate the County’s response to these demands and needs.
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Sewer and Water Une Expansions
o Several small sewer line extensions were installed and some are under construction.

o Spencer’s Gate, Welsh Paper, Southern Lithoplate, and Weathers Street projects were completed.
Ray’s Creek (2.5 mile outfall extension), Wal-Mart, Tarboro Road, Hunter’s Place, and NOVOo projects are still under construction. These projects total about $5 million.

o Animal Control Facility

O The County began the construction of a new Franklin County Animal Control Facility during
the 2007. Bids were received and the county financed $1.28 million for the construction of the facility.o Construction was completed in August 2008 and is now fully operational.

County Airport
In 2006-2007 fiscal year, the county constructed 2 Aircraft T-Hangers at a cost of $734,000.

All available space has been rented and a waiting list has already begun. Franklin County Regional
Airport in under new Management and they have vowed to make the Airport self supporting. The
County is currently looking at allowing a large parachuting company to become a tenant at the airport
to help boost fuel sales and exposure.

o School Infrastructure Needs
In June 2004, the County Commissioners and the Board of Education agreed to ask the

citizens of the county to support a $30 million general obligation bond issue for school renovations,
future land purchase, and construction of a new elementary school. The County issued $1.4 million ino General Obligation Bonds in May 2005 for Terrell Lane Middle School, the County issued another 20o million in G.O. Bonds in August 2006, and the remaining $8.6 million in August 2007. The county also

o issued $1 2.815 million in COPS to complete the new elementary school in June 2007. Renovations
for all projects should be complete by the end of F.Y.E. 2009.

In May 2008, the County was successful in passing a GO Bond issue for $53 million for a new
high school to serve the FranklintonlYoungsville area and to provide other various renovations to
other existing schools around the county. With the downfall in the economy and the county’s
unemployment increasing from 4.6 percent to 7 percent in 6 months, the county is currently
investigating delaying the projects. With the down turn in the housing industry in NC, school
enrollment actually decreased in FY 2008-2009. A decision has not been made at the time of this
writing.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The economic base of the county has traditionally centered on agriculture and textiles, however
recently the county has diversified greatly from this base and has attracted many new industries.
Currently, 24.6 % of employment in the county is in manufacturing, 23.8% in service producing
industries, 20.2% in govemment, 9.9% in construction, and 19.4% in other non-agricultural
employment. Agriculture now employs 2.1%. Tobacco, grain and livestock are major agriculture
commodities raised in the county. Currently, 58 percent of the County’s work force commutes out of
county to work. Franklin County is located only 21 miles northeast of Raleigh, the state capital of
North Carolina. Three interstate highways (40, 540, 85, and 95) are easily reached from the county.
Research Triangle Park, the woild’s largest research complex is only 35 miles southeast of the
county seat.



The N.C. Department of Commerce recently dropped Franklin County’s Tier ranking from a
Tier 3 status to a Tier 2 status. The law calls for the 40 most distressed counties to become Tier I
counties, the middle 40 counties to be designated as Tier 2 and the 20 most prosperous counties to
become Tier 3 counties. Data used to determine rankings include unemployment rates, median
household income, population growth and assess property value per capita. Franklin County took
a major economic hit when its top private employer “Flextronic? dosed a manufacturing facility
earlier this year and was one of only three counties in the state to fall in economic rankings based
on state statistics. Flextronics shut down its facility in Youngsville. It employed some 480 people.
Flextronics was also the County’s 5th largest taxpayer paying $128,000 in ad valorem taxes.

Tier designations determine the available amount of tax credits for job creation and business
property investment in a list of eligible industries. They include manufacturing, motorsports, aircraft
maintenance and repair, air courier services, warehousing, customer service call centers, research
and development, electronic shopping and mail order houses, wholesale trade and information
technology. All eligible companies are required to offer employees health insurance and pay at least
50 percent of the premiums, cannot owe back taxes and cannot have received a significant
environmental violation notice from the state Department of Environment and Natural Resources. In
Tier 2 and Tier 3 counties, companies also must meet a wage test.

Potential benefits to companies under each tier designation include:
Tier I - $12,500 tax credit per new job with a requirement to create at least five jobs, and a

7 percent tax credit for eligible business property expenditures.
Tier 2 - $5,000 tax credit per new job with a requirement to create at least 10 jobs, and a 5

percent tax credit for eligible business property expenditures of more than $1 million.
Tier 3- $750 tax credit per new job with a requirement to create at least 15 jobs, and a 3.5

percent tax credit for eligible business property expenditures of more than $2 million.

The county’s largest corporate citizen is Novozymes, Incorporated. Novo Nordisk Biochem,
Inc. The company currently has 450 employees. Their current property valuation is $120.27 million.
This provided over $839,213 to the county in property tax revenue. They are also the county’s largest
water customer averaging 700,000 gallons per day at a cost of $1,250,000 annually. While the
county is extremely fortunate to have such an excellent corporate citizen, efforts should continue to
broaden the county’s tax base. Novozymes represents 3.01 percent of the county’s tax base. Over
reliance on a few large taxpayers is often viewed as a financial weakness and could hinder efforts to
upgrade the county’s bond rating.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Franklin County’s population has increased by 35% sincel995. It is estimated that Franklin County
currently has 56,470 residents. The bulk of the growth had been in the southwestern part of the
county near the Franklin Park Industrial Center, which is located adjacent to US Highway IA north of
the Town of Youngsville but has become more widespread recently. Development and population
growth means increased demand for housing, other facilities and additional county provided services.
Since 2005, the county has expended approximately $42.8 million dollars for various school additions
and renovations. In May 2007, the school capital improvement plan identified another $90 million in
school construction needs. The County has begun to address part of the estimated $90 million in
needs by successfully passing a $53 million GO bond issue in May 2008.

With the county’s population continuing to rise, careful planning must occur to ensure that
adequate real estate remains available for potential industrial and commercial prospects, adequate
water and sewer facilities are present, as well as looking for additional funding streams to provide
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o dollars needed for additional county services that will be requested with residential growth. In Augusto 2005, The State of North Carolina passed a lottery to help with school operational needs and schoolo construction needs. During the State of NC’s budget process, the State developed a proposal thatwill eventually eliminate the county’s Medicaid liability over a three year period. They also qave thecounty a potential new revenue source. The BOARD Of County Commissioners can ask the voters ofthe county for an additional 34 cent sales tax or a land transfer be imposed to help with revenueo needs however the BOC has not decided to initiate this process at the date of this report.

The County has three major water sources. The County can acquire up to three milliono gallons per day from the City of Henderson, five hundred thousand per day from the Town ofo Franklinton and the Town of Louisburg respectively. The county issued 12.4 million COP Bond issueo in March 1999 to install main water and distribution lines from the FranklinNance County line into the
O

heart of Franklin County. The construction phase was completed in June 2000. As of June30th,2008,
the County utilizes about 2.0 million gallons per day. The county currently has a combined 2,689water and sewer customers. The average daily treatment of sewer is 700,000 gallons. The countyhas identified other potential water sources and is actively investigating those avenues. According tothe 2003 water study, Franklin County has sufficient water supply until 2015.

SINGLE AUDIT

As a recipient of federal, state and county assistance, the County also is responsible for ensuring thatan adequate intemal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws ando regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluationo by management and the Finance Department staff of the County. As a part of the County’s single
O audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure,including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as too determine that the County has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of theo County’s single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, provided no instances of materialweaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws arid regulationsdespite the new implementation of SAS 112.

CASH MANAGEMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Cash Management - The County uses a central depository system to pool moneys from all funds tofacilitate disbursements and investments. All depositories are collateralized according to NorthCarolina General Statute 159-31. Investments are made in accordance with North Carolina GeneralStatute 159-30. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in interest-bearing accounts,principally with the North Carolina Capital Management Trust, BB&T, and First Citizens Bank. Thegovernment fund types recorded investment income of $1,739,204 for fiscal year 2008. At June 30,2008, the County’s deposits had a carrying value of $14,686,886 and a bank balance of
$22,001,579. All County deposits are maintained with financial institutions, which collateralizedeposits in excess of amounts insured by the FDIC by the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2008$855,277 of the bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance and $21,146,302 wascovered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.

Risk Management — The County participates in one insurance pool developed by the North CarolinaAssociation of County Commissioners. The pool provides coverage for health and dental insuranceand general liability. The limits of coverage include the following: jail and public safety officers’liability $2,000,000, vehicle liability $2,000,000 and property damage $125.5 million. The county isself insured for worker’s compensation and has realized a substantial savings by doing so. Thecounty has additional specific stop loss coverage in the amount of $400,000 per incident.
5



Also the county has a Safety Officer. The Safety Officer reviews accidents, makes periodic on-

site inspections, makes recommendations to improve safety practices and provide employee safety

education. The county has an established safety committee that consists of a representative from

each county office building. The safety committee meets monthly to review accidents, perform safety

inspections and discuss potential corrections to safety related issues.

PENSION AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The County of Franklin sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for its public safety

employees (Separation Allowance). Each year, an independent actuary calculates the amount of the

annual contribution that the County of Franklin may make to the pension plan to ensure the plan will

be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis. The County has chosen

to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension expenditures are made from

the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis. The County currently has 40

active members. Four retirees are receiving benefits.

The County of Franklin also contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement

System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the

State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and

beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit

provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. This plan includes all County employees. The

rate of contribution is determined each year by an actuarially determined rate. The County of

Franklin has no obligation in connection with employee benefits offered through this plan beyond its

contributions to the LGERS.

A Supplemental Retirement Income Plan is also provided to all County employees. The County

contributes each month an amount equal to 4% of each employee’s salary, excluding law

enforcement that receive 5% of their monthly salary. All amounts are contributed and invested

immediately and employees may also make voluntary contributions to the plan. The Department of U
State Treasurer and Board of Trustees administer the plan.

The County of Franklin also provides post retirement health care benefits for certain retirees. As of

the end of FY 2008, there were 31 retired employees receiving a Medicare supplement and 25

retirees who are receiving regular health insurance coverage. At age 65, all retirees must change

over to the Medicare supplement. Theses benefits are financed on a pay as you go basis, and GAAP

does not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an

employer’s obligation to provide these benefits.

Additional information on the pension and post employment benefits can be found in the notes to the

financial statements.

AWARDS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit — The County is required by state statutes to have an annual independent

financial audit. The accounting firm of Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, LLP. has

begun conducting the County’s annual audit this year. In addition to meeting the requirements set

forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to comply with the requirements of the Single

Audit Act of 1996 and related 0MB circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

The auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund

6



statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditors reports
related specifically to the single audit are included in the compliance section.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - The Management’s discussion and analysis report
contains more detailed information regarding the County of Franklin’s financial statements and can
be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Awards - The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Franklin

O
County North Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June
wth 2007. This was the ninth consecutive year that Franklin County has achieved this prestigiouso award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily

o readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated efforts of the Finance
Department’s staff and the cooperation and dedication of other county departments and the auditing
staff of Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company. Great gratitude is extended to the Board of
County Commissioners for their continued support throughout the past year.

o Use of the Report. The Govemment Finance Officers Association reports a growing awareness that
o the annual financial report should be management’s report to its governing body, constituents,

O
oversight bodies, resource providers, investors and creditors. We agree with this direction, and in
keeping with our past practice, have made available a copy of this report to each of you, the various

Q county departments, bond rating agencies, the Local Government Commission, and such other
financial institutions that have expressed an interest in the County of Franklin’s financial affairs.

A copy of this report is also being placed in the Franklin County Public Library and the Franklin
County Chamber of Commerce. The report may also be viewed from the County’s web site
www.co.franklin.nc.us.

Respectfully submitted,

______

edr
Angela L. Harris Charles F. Murray, Jr.
County Manager Director of Finance
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IndeDendent Auditor’s Revort

To the Board of County Commissioners
Franklin County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fimd, the aggregate remaining fluid information, and the
accompanying combining and individual find financial statements of Franklin County, North
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise Franklin
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of Franklin County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major find, and the aggregate remaining find information of Franklin County, North Carolina,
as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, Fire District
Fund, Emergency Telephone System, DEA Fund, and Revaluation Fund, for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

102 W. Spring Street P.O. Box 1366 Oxford, NC 27565 (919) 693-5 196 far (919) 693-7614
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

November 29, 2008, on our consideration of Franklin County’s internal control over financial

reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts

and grants and other matters. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in

considering the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the schedules of funding progress, employer

contributions and the notes to the required schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special

Separation Allowance are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are

supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We

have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management

regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary

information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Franklin County, North Carolina. The

introductory information, combining and individual nonmajor fimd financial statements and

schedules and the statistical tables, as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of

federal and State awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,

Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit

Implementation Act, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part

of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor hind financial

statements and the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards have

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements

and, in our opinion is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole. The introductory information and the statistical tables have not

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements

and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

é&sbia ã&Zwrs C.ict Jvaw 6Jawaast £40

Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
November 29, 2008
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Pn,:nh, (91 fig.Jfljgg Office of Finance‘7 r Charles Murray, Jr.113 Market Street DirectorLouisburg, North Carolina 27549
Telephone: 91 9496-3182

Fax: 919-496-2683

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o As management of the County, we offer readers of Franklin County’s financial statements this narrative
O overview and analysis of the financial activities of Franklin County for the fiscal year ended June 30.2008. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additionalo information that we have furnished in the County’s financial statements, which follows this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The County’s Liabilities exceeded its net assets by $7.30 million. In accordance with NorthCarolina law, liabilities of the County include long-term debt associated with assets belonging tothe Franklin County Board of Education. The amount included in liabilities related to schoolfinancing is $58,191,315. These assets are not reflected in the County’s financial statements butthe full amount of the long-term debt associated with schools is reflected in the County’s financial
O statements. Some similar County financial reports may reflect a net deficit in net assets due tothis law.
Q . As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined
O ending fund balances of $26,623,763, a 28 percent decrease from the previous fiscal year wherethe combined fund balances totaled $36,761,000. The major decrease was in school capitalo reserve funds earmarked for school construction where bond proceeds were expended on school
O construction. Approximately 60 percent of this total amount or $19,441,965 is available forspending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was$15,764,593 or 24.6 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. Of this amount$3,154,565 has been designated for subsequent year expenditures.
• The County’s total debt increased by $3,747,644 during the current fiscal year. The Countyissued the remaining $8,600,000 in GO Bonds in August 2007 from an earlier $30,000,000approved by the voters in November 2004. AU debt payments were paid timely.
• The County was upgraded in May 2005 in its bond rating from Moody’s Investor Services from an(A2) to an (Al) and was also upgraded by Standard & Poor’s from an (A) to an (A.). TheCounty’s rating the same during FY 2007-2008.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to The County’s basic financialstatements. The County’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-widefinancial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basicfinancial statements present two different views of the County through the use of government-widestatements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report alsocontains other supplemental information that should enhance the reader’s understanding of the financialcondition of the County.

0
0
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County’s govemment. These statements provide more detail than the government-
wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the
agency fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show details about the County’s non-major governmental funds and internal
service funds, all of which are added together in one column on the basic financial statements.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Following the notes is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding information
about the County’s pension plans.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the County’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the County’s financial status
as a whole.



The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets are the difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is
one way to gage the County’s financial condition.

o The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2)
business-type activities; and 3) cornponent units. The governmental activities include most of the

0 County’s basic services such as general administration, taxation and records, community planning,

O community maintenance, human services, education, and public safety. Property and other taxes and
state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those thato the County charges customers to provide the service. Franklin County’s only business-type activity

O reported during fiscal year 2008 is for water and sewer service. In past fiscal years, the County
recognized solid waste service as a business type activity. However in fiscal yew 2003, the county begano reporting this service under governmental activities. The final category is component units. Although

O
legally separate from the County. the Franklin County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing
Authority is the County’s only reportable component unit. The County exercises control over its Board by

o appointing all five of its members. The Authority had no financial transactions or account balances;

Q
therefore, it is not presented in the governrnent-wide combined financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

o The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A
Q fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like all other governmental entities in North0 Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related
o legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of

O
the County can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governrnental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s basic services
are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into
cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next
year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting
which provides a current financial resources focus. In modified accrual accounting, revenues are
recognized when They become available and expenditures are reported when the obligations were
incurred. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term
view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the
County’s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a
part of the fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the
management of the County, and the decisions of the Board of Commissioners about which services to
provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County
succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format,
language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance. The statement shows four colurnns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final
budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending
balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and charges.



Proprietary Funds — The County utilizes one proprietary fund. The County uses an Enterprise Fund to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer activity. This fund is
the same as the function shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among the functions of the County. The County currently has one internal service fund
called the Insurance Fund. Actual payments for health insurance, property and liability insurance,
unemployment charges, and workers compensation payments are recorded.

Agency Funds — These hinds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others.
These funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The County has five agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements are on pages 26 -49 of this report.

Required Supplemental Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the County’s progress
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found beginning on page 51 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

The County’s government-wide financial statements presented in fiscal year ending 2003 marked the
beginning of a new era in financial reporting for the County and many other units of government across
the United States. Prior to this year, the County maintained their governmental and proprietary fund
groups as two separate and very distinct types of accounting without any type of consolidated statement
that accurately reflected the operations and net assets of the government as a whole. There was a total
column that appeared on the financial statements, but it was a memorandum total only. No attempt was
made to adjust the statements in such a way that the total column would represent the overall financial
condition of the County. These statements were basically the equivalent of the fund financial statements
that appear in this report with fiduciary funds and two account groups, the long-term debt and the general
fixed assets, included.

The changes in the financial statement-reporting model were mandated by the Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). GASS Statement 34 dictated the changes you see in the Count/s financial
reports as well as those of many other units of government when comparing to the County’s financial
reports prior to FYE 2003. The County was required to implement these changes in FYE 2003. The
current year reflects the GASB 34 change as well and all future years will.

Figure 2 (below) represents comparative data for the County’s total assets, total liabilities, and net assets
for FYE 2007 and FYE 2008.

Figure 2

FRANKLIN COUNTY’S NET ASSETS
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Q As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial
condition. The liabilities of the County exceeded its assets in the Governmental funds by $7,298,899 ando in the Business-type fund the assets exceeded its liabilities by $13,738,310 of June 30, 2008. Total Net

O assets are reported in two categories: Invested in capital assets, net & related debt of $30,469,414 and
unrestricted net assets $(24,030,003).

0
The invested h-i capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the County’s investment in
County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and
sewer lines), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The County
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding
related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the
capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets.
This balance may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

In the current fiscal year. the county had a negative number & $30. 17 million in unrestricted net assets.o Many counties in the State of North Carolina have a deficit in unrestricted net assets. This is due primarily

O to the portion of the County’s outstanding debt incurred for the Franklin County Board of Education (the
school system). Under North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for theo school system. The County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the school system capital
funding by using a mixture of County funds and general obligation debt. The assets funded by the
County; however, are owned and utilized by the school system. Since the County. as the issuing
government, acquires no capital assets, the County has incurred a liability without a corresponding
increase in assets. At the end of the fiscal year, approximately $58.2 million of the outstanding debt on
the County’s financial statements was related to assets included in the school system’s financial
statements. However, since the majority of this school system related debt is general obligation debt; it is
collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County. Accordingly, the County is
authorized and required by State law to levy ad valorem taxes, without limit as to rate or amount; as may
be necessary to pay the debt service on its general obligation bonds. Principal and interest requirements
will be provided by an appropriation in the year in which they become due.

In the current year, total net assets decreased significantly due to School Construction-In Progress.
These projects were completed in the year and title reverted by to the County School System thus the
asset of the school being deleted off & the County’s assets. Some of the impact of the inclusion of the
school system debt without the corresponding assets was offset by the following positive operational
initiatives and results:

• Good tax collection rate of 96.34.

• Continued low cost of debt due to the County’s bond rating.

• Continued land use planning for residential growth.

• Adoption of an Adequate Public Facilities Fee for school facilities.

• Lottery Proceeds for school debt.

• A significant increase in revenue for housing federal inmates.

• Controlled departmental spending.



Figure 3
FRANKLIN COUNTY’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
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Governmental activities: Governmental activities decreased the County’s net assets by $14,029,463

due to the large expenditure on school construction. These expenses are not capitalized as assets as

they belong to the County’s School system. key elements are as follows:

Ad valorern Tax collections increased by $3,068,148 due to an increase in property valuation and

a 3.25 cent increase in the property tax rate. The General fund tax rate is 82.25 cents per $100.

• Sales Tax revenues were flat in FY 2007-2008 generating roughly the same as FY 2006-2007

8,419,820.

• FY 2007-2008 saw a major change with how the State and County pay Medicaid expenses. The

County’s Medicaid cost decreased from $2,994,237 to $2,686,589. During the next three years,

Medicaid cost wül become 100% State cost with no county contribution. Counties had to give up

something in return. In year one, the County had to replace school ADM hinds which totaled

$354,000. In year two and three, the State will benefit by taking the counties article 44 sales tax

to help offset the costs of Medicaid. Some counties will see a major savings. Franklin County will

see an annual minimum savings of $500,000.

• Investment earnings decreased by $429,522. interest rates on investments have decreased to an

average yield & 3.50 percent. The decrease was mainly due to the expenditure of Bond

proceeds.



Business-type activities: The net assets in Business-type activities decreased by $63,629. Water andSewer collections decreased by $438,760 in FY 2007-2008. The economy and housing slump had amajor impact on new customers. Our customer growth rate dropped from 20% to 5% during the year.
Conservation efforts decreased sales during the year as well. The county’s customer base increased from
2,564 to 2,689, a 4.9 percent increase.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds
As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing theCounty’s financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of agovernment’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

o ThegeneralfundisthechiefoperatingfundoftheCounty. Attheendofthecurrentfiscalyear,unreserved undesignated fund balance of the General Fund was $11,455,767 while total fund balanceo reached $18,246,432. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
O unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved undesignatedfund balance represents 17.8 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balanceo represents 28.4 percent.

Also in FY 2007-2008, the county’s school construction capital project fund was again identified as amajor governmental fund. This fund accounts for school construction activities such as bond proceedsand capital construction expenses. At June 30th, 2008, the school construction had a fund balance of$3.396 million.

At June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of the County reported a combined fund balance of$26,623,763. The county’s overall fund balance remains strong.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During fiscal year 2008. the County maintained a strong fund balance position and finished the year insound financial condition. The County revised its’ budget on several occasions. Generafly, budgetamendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are usedto prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made torecognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3)increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. Total amendments to theGeneral Fund increased revenues by $854,654 and expenditures by $1,025,409 or 1.6% of the totalbudget.

The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were higher than the budgeted amount by $157,370.Sales Tax revenues were under budget by $624,110 and Ad valorem taxes exceeded budget by$424,541. The County’s expenditures were $1,861,573 less than budgeted. Human Servicesdepartments under spent their budgets by $1,031,385 and Public Safety departments under spent theirbudgets by $269,387.

Proprietary Funds: The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in thegovernment-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund atthe end of the fiscal year amounted to $6,098,885. This increase of $2,338,394 was mainly due areduction of debt and bond proceeds still unexpended.



Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets: The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30. 2008, totaled $55,176,238 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets
include buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and water and sewer lines.

Major capital asset transactions during the year included:

• The purchase of 3 new ambulances at $215,000

• Purchased 25 new vehicles $758,723.

• Purchase land in Pilot area for a new recreational facility at a cost of $264,364.

• Cleaned up the Espom school property at a cost of $191 .407.

FIgure 4

F,ankJin County’s Capital Assets (net of depreciation)
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Mditional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 11.5 of the Basic Financial
Statements.

Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2008, the County had total bonded school debt outstanding of
$38,800,000, all of which is backed by the full faith and credit of the County. The County has
$38,019,801 in Certificates Of Participation outstanding, $2,340,000 outstanding in Federal and State
revolving loans and $3,602,169 in several small installment loans outstanding. A summary of total long-
term debt is shown in Figure 5.

FIgure 5

Franklin County’s General Obligation, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable
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In fiscal year 2007-2008, the County’s total debt increased by $3,841,703 as the county issued
$8,600,000 in GO Bonds. The County met all of its obligations in a timely fashion. In May 2008. the
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0
o County voters approved a $53,000,000 school bond. It is anticipated the County will issue a portion of
o those bonds in May 2009.

The County’s most recent bond ratings are shown below:

Moody’s Investor Services Al
Standard & Poor’s

This stability of the county’s bond rating is a clear indication of the sound financial condition of The
County. This achievement helps keep interest costs low on the County’s outstanding debt.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 percent of
the total assessed value of taxable property located within that govemment’s boundaries. The legal debt
margin for the County is $167,058,485. The County has $53,000,000 bonds authorized but un-issued at
June 30. 2008.

Additional information regarding the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 11.7.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budaets and Rates

• The unemployment rate for Franklin County was 7.00 percent at June 30. 2008, which is higher
when compared to last years rate at 4.80 percent.

• Inflationary trends in the region compare very favorably to national indicators.

• State Sales Tax revenues are decreasing statewide. The County’s local point of sale remains
stable. The County’s tax base continued to grow at almost 5.3 percent.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County of Franklin’s budget for FYE 2009.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30. 2009

• Governmental ActIvities: The County has approved a $66.58 million general fund budget for
fiscal year 2008-2009. This represents a $1.5 million or 2.4 percent increase over the previous
fiscal year. The property tax rate remained stable at .8225 cents per $100 dollars of property
valuation.

• Budgeted expenditures for education continue to increase. The County budgeted $19,571,331 for
education in fiscal year 2009, an increase of $ $1.5 million over the previous year. The County
has committed to enhancing public safety with the addition of thirteen new paramedics in the
Emergency Medical Services budget and 3 new ambulances. The county also plans to upgrade
its Emergency Communication System to effectively dispatch emergency personnel to all parts of
the county. The county purchase 20 acres of property in the Pilot area for the construction of a
recreation facility and approved a $1.1 million recreational facility. The budget also included a 3%
COLA for each employee.

• Business — type Activities: The County increased its water and sewer rates by 5 percent
during the FY 2008-2009 budget. The county’s water and sewer system appropriated $997,000 in
fund balance to balance current operations. New debt service payments are the reason for the
appropriation. With the downtum in the housing market, the county’s customer base is not
expected to increase as in past years and has been budgeted accordingly.



Reauests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to the County of Franklin, Director of Finance, 113 Market Skeet.
Louisburg NC 27549. This report can also be found online at w.franklincountvnc.us under the Finance
tab.
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ExhibitS

0
FranklIn County, North Carolina

Q Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

0 June 30, 2008

0 Major Major Nonmajor

0 School Other Total
Construction Governmental Governmental

Q General Fund Fund, Funds
Assets

() Cash and cash equivalents S 17.732.932 $ 2.389.053 S 3.204,726 $ 23.326.711
Receivables, net 2.272.256 - 143,998 2.416,254

0 Due from other governments 2.419.395 349.152 493.000 3.261.347
Inventory 62.444 - . 62.444

O Restaicted assets:
Debt service reserve - 2.328.747 1.493.799 3.822.546

0 Total assets $ 22.487.027 $ 5,066,952 S 5.335,523 $ 32,889,502

LiabilIties and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,038,469 $ 1.670.741 S 242.322 S 3.951,532

0 Defened revenue 2.202.126 - 112.081 2.314.207

O
Total liabilities 4.240.595 1.670.741 354,403 6.265.739

Fund Balances:

() Reserved by State statute 2.4 19.395 349.152 528,261 3.296.808
Reserved for inventory 62.444 . - 62.444
Reserved for

Debt service - 1.493,799 1.493.799
School construction - 2.328.747 2,328,747

Unreserveth
Designated for subsequent year’s expenditwe
General fond 3.154.565 . - 3.154.565

Boarddesignatedforsoilandwater. 3.732 . . 3.732
Board designated for Cooperative Extension 54.447 ‘ - 54.447
Board designated for EMS 393.712 . . 393,712
Board designated for Parts and Recreation 320,871 . - 320.871
Board designated for Adequate Pi*lic Facilities 302.062 - . 302.062
Board designated for Occupancy Tax 79,437 . . 79,437
ljndesignated 11.455.767 - . 11.455.767

Unreserve undesignated. reported ‘m nonnssjor
Special revenue bids - 2390.957 2,290,937
Capital projects fends - 718312 668.103 1.386.415

Total fond balances 18,246,432 3.396.211 4.981.120 26,623.763

Total liabilities and fond balances $ 22.487.027 $ 5.066,952 $ 5,335,523

Ainotmts reponed for govenvnental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit I) are different
because:

Capital assets used in goveunnental activities are not financial resowves and therefore are not
reported in the fends. 29.678.825

Internal service bid is used by management to charge instnnce costs to individual funds; the assets
and liabilities oldie internal service fund is included in governmental activities in the statement of net
assets. 115.484

Other long-tenn assets are not available to pay tbr current-period expenditures and therefore arc
deferred in the fwids 2.139,236

Other long-term assels are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore ate
deferred in the funds: 417.420

Sortie liabilities, including bonds payable. are not due and payable in the current year and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds (66.271,357)

Cash transferred to agency fund to pay to State of North Carolina for vehicle tax mtewest (2,270)

Net assets of govenunental activities S (7.298.899)

mc notes to the financial slatements are an integral part ofthts statement
30



ExIthit4

Fn.ItJIa Co.(y, North Ca rolla.
Sjateiaene of Reve.n Ezpeidiaes. aad Ctuni$rs 1* Fad Balances

0..e,,ae.al Fusid.
For the Yea, Ended June 30.1008

1lsj.r Major Nonnejor

School Other Total
Constrjclto Governnwrnal Governmental

General Fund Fund Fund, Funds

Revenues
Ad %2101tm1,Aes $ 30,72$,411 $ - S 1,958.940 $ 32.680.351

LocaloØio. saks lanes 8.418.813 . 2.1*8.942 11.207.755

oar taxes ad &eases 2.376 - 297.115 299.491

Unrestricted intcnjovetiiii,eiital 637.646 . . 6)7,646

Restricted iniergovcniae.tal 9.045.722 . 3(4.527 9360249

Peeflisand Fees 226*394 . 2.268394

Saks ad ten’,ces 9.097.445 . . 9.097.445

Iiivesasitnniinp 931.021 548,154 259.329 1,739.204

Miscellaneous 117475 . 3204 120.879

Total revenues 61240.503 545.854 3.622.057 67.411,414

Expenditure.
Current

General government 4.795.841 151.840 4.947.681

Public saFely 14,644378 2345263 16.989.641

Econonc and physical developnet 5364371 32.449 5397.420
Hunm services 18.410490 . 18.410490

C.kwal and recreaI 1425.397 . 1.625.597

E&acaio. 12.991,750 . 70.000 13.061.750

Capitajoatby . 18.994.808 907.433 19.902,241

Dett evice:
Principal 3.837.682 . . 3.837.682

Interest and other charges 2.508273 . . 2.308273

Total expenditures 64.179.182 18.994.808 3.506.985 86.680.975

Revenues over (under) espendllure. (2.938.679) (18.445.954) 2.115.072 (19,269.561)

Other fluaadnt aources (uses)
Translet to other bids (682.633) . 1)243414) (3.926247)
Transfees Boo. other bids 2.993.612 . 1.198257 4.191.869

1bc4 o(deb( . 8,800,090 . 8,600.000

Sak oIcapital assen 245.728 . 245.728

Total other financing sources (uses) ‘lie, 2.556.707 8.600.000 (2.045357) 9.111350

Nd chaps in bid bact. (3*1.972) (9.845.954) 69.715 (10.158211)

Fund balance.
Beginntn8 ofysar. July I 18.597.430 (3.242.165 4.911.405 36.731.000

Increase in reserve for inventosy 30.974 ‘ . 30.974

End olycar.June 30 $ 18246.432 $ 3396.211 $ 4.981.120 S 26.623.763

The notes to die flpnacbl statements are au integral put of the tiatemere
‘I



Exhibit 4
(continued)

Fra.kiin Co.nty, North Carolina
Statement of’ Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in funds balances- total governmental funds $ (10,158211)

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and
allocated over the life of the asset. 13,279,209

The allocation of the cost of assets over the lire of the asset through
depreciation is not a current financial use in the funds therefore
depreciation expense is not recorded in these statements. (1,727.078)

Assessments during the year provide current financial resources and are
reported as revenues in the runds. This transaction has no impact on
net assets since assessment income was accrued in a prior period. (3,027)

Increase in Ad Valorem taxes receivable that arc not reflected in the funds
as they are not a source of current resources. 471,352

The repayment of the principal of long-tenn debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. This transaction has no
effect on net assets. 3.837,681

Loss on disposal of capital assets, which are not recorded in the governmental
funds since they do not involve the use of current assets (36,317)

The net issuance of long-term debt creates current financial resources
which are recogrnzed in the governmental fluids. This transaction
has no impact on net assets. (8,600,000)

The net loss of internal service activity is reported rn the government-wide
statements. (381,112)

Assets tiansfeired to local education unit (10,651,699)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in governmental funds:

Compensated absences accrued (28.902)
Retirement expenses accrued (19,3)4)

Inventory not expensed on statement of activities 30,974

Total changes in net assets of govcrnniental activities S (13,986,464)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ExNbit 5

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
With Final

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Reveii.es
Ad vaiorem taxes $ 29.821.570 $ 30.296,870 $ 30,721.411 $ 424,541

Local option sales tax 9,042,923 9,042,923 8,418,813 (624,110)

Other taxes and licenses 1,500 I .500 2.376 876

Unrestricted intergovernmental 618,800 546,840 637,646 90,806

Restricted intergovernmental 8,164.886 8.773.531 9.045,722 272,191

Permits and fees - 2,271,764 2,268,394 (9,370)

Salesandservices 11,262.7)9 9,109394 9.097.445 (11,949)

lnvestnientearnings 900.000 900,000 931.021 31.021

Miscellaneous 416,081 134,311 117,675 (16,636)

Totalrevenues 60.228,479 61.083.133 61,240,503 157370

Expenditures
Current:

General government 4,564,150 5.031.248 4,795,841 235,407

Public safety 15,465,085 14.913.765 (4,644,378 269387

Economic and physical development 4.662.247 5,449,969 5.364,971 84.998

Human services 19,556.429 19,442,075 18,410,690 1,031 385

Cultural and recreational 1,556.936 (.689.606 1.625.597 64.009

Intergovemmenial:
Education 12,688.157 12,991,750 12.991.750

Debt service:
Principal retirement 3.808.366 3,808366 3,831.682 (29,316)

Interestandothercharges 2,713.976 2.713.976 2.508,273 205.703

Totalexpenditures 65.015.346 66.040,755 64.179,182 1,861473

Revenues under expenditures (4.786,867) (4,957,622) (2,938.679) 2,018,943

Oilier financing sources (uses)
Transfers to other funds (682.633) (682,633) -

Transfers fromother funds 2,995,000 2,995,000 2,993.612 (1,388)

Sale of capital assets 155,000 245.728 90,728

Appropriated fund balance 1.791.867 2,490.255 - (2,490,255)

Total other financing sources (uses) net 4,786.867 4.957,622 2,556,707 (2,400,915)

Revenues and other financing sources under
expenditures and other financing uses $ - $ - (381,972) $ (381.972)

Find balance
Beginning of year, July I 18397.430

Decrease in reserve for inventory 30,974

Endofyear,June3O $ 18,246,432

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part olihis statement.
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Exhibit 6

0
0 FranklIn County, North Carolina

Q Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

O June 30. 2008

Major Major
Internal

Enterprise Service
Fond Fund

Water and Insurance
Sewer Fund Fund

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,864,240 S 115.664
Receivables, net 553.731 -

Due from other governments 14,680 100
Reserved cash 3,301,540 -

Total cunent assets 6.134,197 II 5,764

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land, improvements, and construction in progress 871.121 -

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 24,626,286 -

Total capital assets 25,497,413 -

Total noncurrent assets 25.497,413 -

Total assets 32,231,610 115,764

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 297,323 280
Accrued payroll 32.631 -

Customer deposits 196,240
Compensated absences 54,559 -

Revolving loans 180.000 -

Certificates of participation 1.031.085 -

Total current liabilities 1,791,838 280

Noncurrent liabilities:
Revolving loans 2.160,000 -

Certificates of participation 14,541,462 -

Total liabilities 18.493,300 280

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7.639,425 -

Unrestricted 6.098,885 115.484

Total net assets $ 13,738.310 $ 115,484

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ci’ this statement.
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Exhibit 7

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Major Major

lateral Senice
Enterprise Fund Fund

Operating revenues
Charges for water
Charges for sewer
Impact and connection fees
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Internal Service fund expenses

Water Decartinent
Salaries and employee benefits
Water purchases
Other operating expenses
Depredation

Water and Sewer
Fund

5 4,010,036
1.093,469

518,516

219,448
5,841,469

547,926
2,661,033

343,073
669.029

4.221,061

Insurance Fund

S

5,083,709

5.083,709

5,466,805

Sewer Devartmenl
Salaries and employee benefits
Contracted services
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonopcrating revenes (expenses)
Grant
Interest earnings
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses). net

Income (loss) before transfers

Capital contributions

Transrers
Transfer to General fund
Transfer from General firnd

Total transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets
Beginning of year, July I

End of year, June30

292,278
134,006
347,585
207,761
981,630

40,000
265,418

(742.203)

(350,719)
8 5,097

(265,622)

(63,629)

5,202,691

638.778

(436,785)

201,993

5,466,805

(383,096)

1,984

1,984

(381,112)

(381,112)

496,596

S 115,484

13,801.939

S 13,738.310

rhe notes to the tinancml statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 8

Franklin County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activilin
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Customer deposits received

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapilal financing
activities

Transfers out
Transfers in

Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities

Internal Service
Fund

Insarance Fund

S 5,083,891
(5.467,578)

(383,687)

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities

Issuance ofdebt
Increase in reserved cash
Acquisition and construction of

capital assets
Principal paid on bonds
Interest paid on bonds
State grant

Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities

(144,542)

(562,535)
(1,014,034)

(742,922)
40,000

(2.424,033)

Cash flows from Investing activities
Interest on investments 265.4 lB 1,984

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year, July I

End of year, June30

3,603.190

5 2,864,240

497,367

$ 115,664

Major Major

Enterprise Fund

Water and Sewer
Fund

$ 5,890,454
(3,409,994)

(830,273)
35,100

1,685,287

(350,719)
85,097

(265,622)

(738,950) (381.703)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Franklin County. North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended tune 30, 2008

Exhibit 8
(concluded)

Major

Enterprise Fund

Water and Sewer
Fund

Major

Internal Service
Fund

Insurance Fund

Reconciliation of operating Income
to net cash provided by operating
a cdvi ties:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and

accrued liabilities
Increase in accrued payroll
Increase in customer deposits
Increase in accrued vacation pay

To4al adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 638,778

876,790

48,985

75.703
7,107

35,100
2,824

I .046j09

$ 1,685,287

S (383.096)

182

(773)

(591)

S (383,687)

the note, to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exl’iibit9

Frankli, County, Nonb Carolina
Statement of Fiduciasy Net Assets

Fiduciasy Funds
June 30. 2008

Agency
Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,683

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Intergovernmental payable- State of North Carolina S 2.210

Miscellaneous liabilities 67.4(3
69,683

0 NetAssets $ -

0
0
0
0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





0
o Franklin County, North Carolina

o Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June30, 2008

I. Summary of Sienificant Accountin! Policies

The accounting policies of Franklin County and its component unit conform to generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting
policies:

A. Renortint Entity

The County, which is governed by a seven-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 countieso established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-1O. As required by generally

o accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County and its component unit, a legally
separate entity for which the County is financially accountable.

o Franklin County Industhal Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority exist to issue and service revenue

O bond debt of private businesses for economic development pinposes. Authority is governed by a seven-
member board of conimissionej, all of who are appointed by the county commissioners. The County can

o remove any comrrtissioner of the Authority with or without cause. The Authority has no financial transactions

o or account balances; therefore, it is not presented in the combined financial statements. The Authority does not
issue separate financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation. Basis of Accountine

Basis ofPresentation, Measurement Focus — Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information
about the piiniaiy government (the County). These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government except for fldueiary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. lnterftmd transactions provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-Øpe activities of the County.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other non-
exchange fransactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expaes and program revenues for the
business-type activity of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds,
including its fiduciary finds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
finds, each displayed in a separate colunm. All remaining governmental finds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor finds. Franklin County has one enterprise find and one internal service find, both of which are
major finds.
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Proprietary fluid operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange fransactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange nnsactions are those in which each party receives and gives
up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-
exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

School Construction Fund - This fluid is used to account for school construction proiects financed by the
County.

The County reports the following major enterprise fluid:

Water and Sewer Fund- This flmd is used to account for water and sewer operations within the County.

The County reports the following major internal service fluid:

Insurance Fund — This fluid is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with the
County’s self-insured group health insured program.

The County reports the following fluid types:

Agency Funds - Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results.
Agency fluids are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains five
agency fluids: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of Social
Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the Fines and Forfeitures Fund, which accounts for moneys
deposited with the County and then remitted to the Franklin County Board of Education; the City Ad Valorem
and Motor Vehicle Tax Fund which accounts for registered motor vehicle property taxes and other property
taxes that are billed and collected by the County for various municipalities within the County; the three percent
interest on the first month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to remit to the North
Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles; and the Jail Fund, which accounts for the revenues and expenditures of
activity fluids belonging to inmates during their period of incarceration.

Measurement focus, Basis of Accounting

fri accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Govenunent-wide, Proprietaiy. and Fiduciaiy Fund Financial &atements. The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fluid financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except
for the agency funds, which have no measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary
fluid financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accountin& Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows
take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving
(or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
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o grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have

o been satisfied.

o Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or

o privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including

O
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

0
O

Proprietary finds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with ao proprietary find’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise

o finds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system.
Operating expenses for enterprise fluids include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental finds are reported using the cunent financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related find liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental fluids. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorein property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not susceptible to
accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are nmterially past due and are not considered to be an available resource
to finance the operations of the cia year. Also as of January 1,1993, State law altered the procedures for
the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with
this change in the law, Franklin County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on all
registered motor vehicles on behalf of all nwnicipalities and special tax districts in the County. For registered
motor vehicles, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The
billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered
from March 2007 tirough February 2008 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Uncollected taxes that
were billed during this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities flanchise tax, collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and
services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the quali5’ing expenditures have been incurred and
all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County’s
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants,
and then by general revenues.
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All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise fluids of the County follow FASE Statements and
Interpretations issued on ci- before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

C. Budaetaryflata

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is

adopted for the general fluid, four of the special revenue finds (Capital Reserve Fund, Fire District Find, DEA
Fund, and the Emergency Telephone System Fund), the Insurance Fund (an internal service fluid), and the
Water and Sewer Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Project ordinances are adopted

for the capital prqjects fiinds two of the special revenue fluids, (the Community Development Fund and the
Golden Leaf Foundation Fund), and the Water and Sewer Capital Prqject

MI budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appiupiiations at the functional level for the general find, at the departmental level for the special revenue and
enterprise funds, and at the object level for the capital projects fluids. The balances in the Capital Reserve Fund
will be appropriated when transferred to a capital projects fluid in accordance with the project ordinance adopted
for the reserve fluid. The County Manager is authorized to flnsfer unlimited fluids between departments of the
same fluid. The County Manager is also authorized to transfer up to $10,000 between funds, but must report
this to the Board during the next meeting

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1. Depudts and Investments

All deposits of the County are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
G.S. 159-31. The County may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association whose
principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County may establish time deposit accounts such as
NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the Unites States or obligations fully
guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States obligations of the State of North Carolina
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-
guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances and the
North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMfl

The County’s investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are carried at fair value as detemiined by quoted marked prices. The securities of the NCCMT
Cash Portfolio, and SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fluid, are valued at fair value, which is the
NCCMT’s share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools moneys from several funds, except for two of the Agency Funds, to facilitate disbursement
and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially
demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents.
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3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended bond proceeds in the School Construction Fund COPS Capital Prqjects Fund and the Water

and Sewer fbnd are classified as restricted assets because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for

which the bonds were issued.

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

in accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on

property other than motor vehicles on July I, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1

(lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on

the assessed values as of January 1,2007. As allowed by state law, the county has established a schedule of

discounts that apply to taxes that are paid prior to the due date. In the county’s general fUnd, ad valorem tax

revenues are reported net of stich discounts.

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtfUl

accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior

years.

6. Inventories

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, on a first-in, first-out basis, or market. The County’s General Fund

inventory consists of aviation fuel that is recorded as expenditures when purchased.

7. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets

are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Minimum capitalization cost is: $50,000 for

buildings and building improvements; and $5,000 for equipment, vehicles, and furniture. The cost of normal

maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not

capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Franklin County Board of Education properties that have not been included in

capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment puichase financing of

acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive refUnds of sales tax paid for construction

costs. Agreement between the County and the Board of Education give the Board of Education full use of the

facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, and provide that the County will convey title to the

property back to the Board of Education, once all restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax

reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties are reflected as capital assets in the financial

statements of the Franklin County Board of Education.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
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Buildings 15-30
Furniture and equipment 5-40
Vehicles 5
Computer equipment & software 3-5
Waterlines 15-40

8. Long-tenn Oblifations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fluid type in the fund financial statements,
long-tenn debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activity, or proprietary fluid type statement ofnet assets.

In the fluid financial statements for governmental fluid types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as
another financing source.

9. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County provide for the accumulation for up to thirty days earned vacation leave
with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County’s government-wide and proprietary funds, an
expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is
earned.

The sick leave policies of the County provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave
does not vest; but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the detennination
of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have any obligation for
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made by the County.

10. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fluid financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources
that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through Slate statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations or restrictions of fluid balance represent amounts
that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fluid balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

State law [G.S. 159-I 3(bXl6)] restricts the appropriation of fluid balance to an amount not to exceed the sum of
cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances and defened revenues arising from cash
receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classil3’ fluid balances as follows:

a
0
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Reserved

Reserved by State statute - portion of find balance, which is not available for appropriation under
State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This amount is usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfiind
receivables, which are not offset by deferred revenues.

Reserved for Debt Service - portion of Ilind balance, which is available for appropriation under State
law only for the Debt Service.

Reserved for tnventoiy - portion of fund balance not available for appropriation because it represents
the year.end balance of ending inventory, which is an expendable available resource.

Unreserved

Designated for Soil and Water - portion of find balance which has been designated by the Board for
soil and water protection.

Designated for Cooperative Extension - portion of find balance which has been designated by the
Board for 4-Fl activities.

Designated for Emergency Medical Services - portion of flmd balance, which has been designated
for Emergency Medical Services.

Designated for Recreation - portion of find balance designated by the Board for recreation.

Designate for Home Recovery - portion of find balance designated by the Board for hone recovery.

Designate for Adequate Public Facility Ordinance - portion of find balance designated by the Board
for school &cilities improvement.

Designated for Occupancy Tax - portion of find balance designated by the Board for tourism
activities.

Designated for subsequent year’s expenditures — portion of total find balance available for
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2008-2009 budget ordinances.

Undesignated - portion of find balance available for appropriation, which is uncommitted at yearend.

E. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with genemlly accepted accounting principles requires
management to make assumptions and estimates that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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IL Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1. Deposits

MI of the County’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the

Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with

securities held by the County’s agents in these unit’s names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral

—, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer’s agent in the name of

the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County, these deposits are

considered to be held by their agents in the entities’ name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an

approved avenging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing

deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this infomton with the County or with the escrow agent

Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County under the Pooling

Method, the potential exists for undewoUateiization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.

However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each

depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The County has no formal policy

regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum

capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The County

complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits

are property secured.

The State treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions.

The County relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The County complies with the

provisions of G. S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly

secured.

At June 30, 2008, the County’s deposits had a carrying amount of $21,810,972 and a bank balance of

$22,00l.580. Ofthe bank balance, $1,163,948 was covered by federal depository insurance and $20,837,631 in

interest bearing deposits was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2008, Franldin County had $3,540 cash on hand.

2. Investments

At June 30,2008, the County’s investment balances were as follows:

Fair Value 6-12 months

NC Capital Management Trust $ 11,683,602 $ 11,683,602

Credit Risk - The County limits investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase of

securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated. The County’s

investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard &

Poor’s as of June 30, 2008. The County’s policy on investment is that only investments allowed by North

Carolina General Statutes are allowed.
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3 Property Tax — Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County at
the present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for use-value taxation,
the property tax is recomputed at market value for the cuntnt year and the three preceding fiscal years, along
with the accnied interest from the original due date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following
are property taxes that could become due if present use-value eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been
recorded in the financial statements.

Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2004 $ 1,948,875 $ 638,257 $ 2,587,132
2005 2,936,699 697,466 3,634,165
2006 2.978,049 439,262 3,417,311
2007 3,001,106 172,564 3,173,670
2008 3.122A51 - 3.122A51
Total $ 1.947.549 $15S34.729

4. Receivables

Accounts receivable at the individual find level at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Ad Valorem Due from
Taxes & Related Special Other

Accounts Accrued Interest Assessment Governments Total
Governmental Activities:

General $ 797,653 $ 2,662,610 $ 1,029 $ 2,419,394 S 5,880,686
Other Governmental 35261 108,737 - 842,152 986.150

Total receivables 832,914 2,771,347 1,029 3,261,546 6.866,836
Allowance for doubtfUl accounts (620.615) (151.000) - (771.615)

Total - governmental activities
S 212299 $ 2.620147 $ L029 S 3.261.546 $ 6.091221

Amounts not scheduled for
collection during the subsequent
year $ 1.029 S 1.029

Business-type Activities:

Waterand Sewer S 614,244 $ - $ - $ 14,680 $ 628,924
Allowance for doubtfUl accounts (60.507)

- (60.507)

Total — business-type activity $ 553.737 $ 14.680 $ 568.417



Franklin County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

The due from other governments that is owed for governmental activities consists of the following:

Local option sales tax 1,868,572

Child Care 185,684
Social Services 466,153
State Health Grants 54,969

Sales tax refUnd 520,523

Jail Reimbursement 136,521
Miscellaneous 29.124

Total $ 3261.546

5. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Begin Ending

Governmental-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 10,460,727 $ 264,364 $ 35,318 $ 10,689,773

Constniction in process - 19384.018 18.889.526 894.492

Total capital assets not being depreciated 10,460.727 20.048382 18.924.844 11.584.265

Capital assets being depreciate&
Buildings 21,311,372 - - 21,311,372

Waterlines 163,228 - - 163,228

Gaslines 411,481 - - 411,481

Land Improvements 1,615,162 191,407 - 1,806,569

Equipment 4,151,691 517,527 4,669,218

Vehicles 4.261.392 758.723 425.103 4.595.012

Total capital assets being depreciated 31.914326 1.467.657 425.103 32,956.880

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 7,264,501 578,122 - 7,842,623

Waterlines 10,440 4,085 - 14,525

Gas lines 151304 8,241 - 160,146

Land finprovenients 305,129 85,751 - 390,880

Equipment 2,431,885 493,923 2,925,808

Vehicles 3.396.485 556.956 425.102 3.528.338

Total accumulated depreciation 13.560.344 $ 1.727.078 $ 425.102 14.862320

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 18.353.982 18.094.560

Governmental -type activities capital assets net S 49066. 139 S 29.678.825

Business-type activities:
Franklin County Water & Sewer Fund
Capital assets not being depredated:

Land $ 332,206 $ 37,250 $ . $ 369,456

Consiniction in progress 235207 266.464 501,671

Total capital assets not being depreciated 567.413 300.714 871.127

Capital assets being depreciate&
Plant and distribution systems 31,802,372 191,209 31,993,581

FWTtitUIt and maintenance equipment 570,579 45,092 - 615,671
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0 Vehicles 330240 - 1.391 328.849o Total capital assets being depreciated 32,703,191 236.301 1391 3238,l0I

Q
Less accumulated depreciation for
Plant and distribution systeim 6,772,273 773,784 - 7,546,057
Furniture and maintenance equipment 432,622 63,741 - 496,363
Vehicles 254.040 39.265 23.910 269,395

Total accumulated depreciation 7.458.935 $ 876.790 S 23.910 8311.815
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 25.244.256 24.626.286

Business-type activities capital assets, net S 25.811.669 S 25.497.413

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofgovernmental activity capital assets as follows:

General Government $ 220,633
Public Safety 894,695
Economic and Physical Development 305,285
Human Services 204,599
Cultural and Recreational 101.866
Total depreciation expense S 1.727.078

Construction and Other Commitments

At June 30, 2008, the County was obligated under construction project:

Remaining
Project SDent-to-date Commitment

School projects $ 29,865,812 $ 3,268,109
Animal Control Prect 894,492 1,191,835

B. Uabilities

1. Pavables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Salaries and
Vendors Benefits_ Total_

Governmental Activities:
General $ 1,209,662 $ 828,807 $ 2,038,469
Capital Projects 1,670,74! - 1,670,741
Other Governmental 242322 242,228

Toial-governmentalactivities S 3.122.725 S 3.951.532

Business-type Activity:
Water and Sewer Fund $._297.324 $ 32.631 S 329.954
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2. Pension Plan Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement System

Plan Description - Franklin County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement

System (LGERS), a cast-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of

North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article

3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina

General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial

statements and required supplementary information for LOERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the

Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by cafling

(919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The

County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the County, the cuitent rate for

employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.92% and 4.86% respectively,

of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of Franklin County are established

and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The County’s contributions to LGERS for the

years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $819,470, $744,807, and $546,437, respectively. The

contributions made by the County and the plan members equaled the required contributions for each year.

b. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description

Franklin County administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a single-

employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County’s qualified sworn law

enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate

of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The ietirenrnt

benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the

General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit

provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. A separate audited pension plan report is not available.

The Separation Allowance covers all MI-time County law enforcement officers. At December 31, 2007, the

Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 2

Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits

Active plan members 57
Total

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

BacLc ofAccounting - Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis of

accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the County has made a

formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance

with the terms of the plan.
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o Method Used to Value Investments — Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term money market debt
O instruments, deposits, and repurchase agreements, are reported at cost or amortized cost, which approximates

fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States Agency securities are valued at theo last reported sales pnce.

0
Contributions

The County is required by Article 1 2D of 6.5. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen
to flmd the amounts necessaiy to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on actuarial
valuations. For the cuirent year, the County contributed $20,623, or 2.l2% of annual covered payroll. There
were no contributions made by employees. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and
may be amended by the North Camlina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance
are financed through investment earnings.

The annual required contribution for the ciu’rnt year was determined as part of the December 31, 2007 actuarial

O
valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumption included (a) 7.25%
investment rate ofreturn (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salaiy increases of4.5% -12.3% pero year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The assumptions did not include

O postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the market value of
investments. The unfounded actuarial accnied liability is being annrtized as a level percentage of pmjectedo payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,2007 was 24 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation The County’s annual pension cost and net pension
obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 37,340
Interest on net pension obligation 17,185
A4justment to annual required contribution (14.563)
Annual pension cost 39,959
Contribution made (20.625)
Increase in net pension obligation 19,334
Net pension obligation at beginning ofyear 236.993
Net pension obligation at end ofyear S256.327

3-Year Trend Information

For Year Ended Annual Pension Cost Percentage ofAPC Net Pension
June 30 (APO Contributed Oblintion

2006 $ 47,054 7l.17% $ 226,274
2007 37,943 71.75% 236,993
2008 39,959 5l.62% 256,327
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c. Funded Slams and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0 percent funded. The actuarial

liability for benefits was $256,327, and the actuarial value of assets was 0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial

accrued liability (UALL) of $256,327. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the

plan) was $2,089,098 and the ratio of the UALL to the covered payroll was 0 percent

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following thre notes,

presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or

decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description - The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined

contributions pension plan adninistered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board ofTrustees. The Plan

provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter

135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

Funding Policy - Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount

equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law

enforcement officers may make voluntary ContributiOnS to the —. Contributions for the year ended June 30,

2008 were $110,004, which consisted of $85,197 from the County and $24,807 from the law enforcement

officers.

d. Re2isters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. Franklin County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

(Fund), a noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State

Treasurer. The Finid provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible county register of deeds that is

retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally

sponsored plan. Article 3 ofG.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to

the North Carolina General Assembly.

Funding Policy - On a monthly basis the County renuits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal

to four and one-half percent (15%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article I of G.S. 161.

Immediately following January 1 of each year, the Depariment of State Treasurer divides ninety-three percent

(93%) of the amount in the Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as

monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the Fund’s assets may be used by the State Treasurer in

administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County’s required and actual contributions

were $5,431.

a Other Post-employment Benefits

According to a County resolution, the County provides health care benefits to retirees of the County who

participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (System) and have at

least ten yeats of continuous creditable service with the County at the time of retirement. The County pays the

fill cost of coverage for these benefits. Also, retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the

County’s group rates. Cunently 56 retirees are eligible for posiretirernent health benefits. For the fiscal year

ended June 30,2008, the County made payments for postretirement health benefit premiums of $189,504. The

County obtains Medicare supplement coverage through private insurers.
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1. Other Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members ofo the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-o administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who
die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days aftero retirement or tennination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the Systemo at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal

O to the employee’s 12 highest months salary in a row dining the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the
benefit may not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. Theo County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are detennined as a
percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments
are made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of
eligible participants.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County made contributions to the State for death benefits of
$21,902. The County’s required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers represented 0.l2% and 0.14% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the
Death Benefit plan cannot be separated between the post employment benefit anxnmt and the other benefit
amount.

3. Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred revenue on the find statements and unearned revenues on the government-wide
statement at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue

Prepaid taxes not yet earned
General Fund $ - $ 106,915
Special Revenue Fund

- 3,344
Taxes receivable, net

General Fund 2,049,053 -

Special Revenue Fund 108,737 -

Special assessments receivable
General Fund 1,029

Home Owners Fund 2.234
General Fund

Total S 2J5&819 $ 112.493

4. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destniction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates in two self-funded
risk-financing pools administered by the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners. Through these
pools, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned property subject to a
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limit of $125.5 million for any one occurrence, general. auto, professional, and employment practices liability

coverage of $2 million per occuntnce, auto physical damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value,

citne coverage of $250,000 per occurrence, and health and dental insurance for County employees. The pools

are audited annualiy by certified public accountants, and the audited financial statements are available to the

County upon request. Two of the pools are reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single

occurrence losses in excess of $500,000 up to a $2 million limit for liability coverage, $600,000 of aggregate

annual losses in excess of $50,000 per occinence for property, auto physical damage, and czime coverage, and

single occurrence losses of $400,000 for workers’ compensation. For health and dental insurance, the County is

reinsured through the Pool for individual losses in excess of $50,000 and aggregate annual losses in excess of

115% of expected claims. The — is reinsured through commercial carrier for worker compensation losses in

excess of $1,000,000.

The County is self-insured for workers’ compensation with Compensation Claims Solutions as its administrator.

The County has a $400,000 stop-loss insurance policy with an insurance company.

The County carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant reductions in

insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past

three fiscal years.

The County has not obtained flood insurance this year due to the fact that the County does not have any capital

assets in a flood plane.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of

the County’s fluids are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officer and Tax

Collector are each individually bonded for $250,000 each. The remaining employees that have access to finds

are bonded under a blanket bond for $250,000.

5. Commitments

At June 30, 2008, the County was obligated under an operating lease for office space as follows:

Beginning Januazy 1, 1999 through December 31, 2008 at the rate of $3.59 per square foot plus taxes

and insurance/month for certain office space for aging services. Rent expense for the year ended June

30, 2008 was $38,438.

At June 30, 2008, the County was obligated under operating leases for land as follows:

Nine parcels of land weit rented for bash dumping and recycling centers ranging from $300 to $1,500

per year. All leases expired June 30, 2008 with options to extend for an additional yw. Options were

exercised on all of the leases at June 30, 2008. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2008 was

$7,370.

At June 30, 2008, the County was obligated under various operating leases for office equipment as follows:

Various agreements expiring from July 2008 to April 2010. Total lease expense for the year ended

June 30,2008 was $110,589.
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Future lease payments total:
Fcc Year

Ending June 30,
2009 $ 92,719
2010 45.619
2011 19219

Total $ 157.557

At June 30, 2008, the County was obligated under a commitment as follows:

The County has made and entered into an agreement on September 19, 1993 and amended November

6, 1995 with Waste Management of Carolinas, Inc. to transport certain solid waste from the transfer

station to a permitted landfill. This agreement goes into effect with the opening of the Franklin County

nnsfer station for a minimum period of 60 months whereby mutual consent between the two parties

extend the term of this agreement for an additional year. Compensation is — monthly at the
following rates:

Hauling cost $44.18 per ton (annual increase based on increase in CPI)

At June 30,2008, the County was obligated to purchase water from tlree local municipalities as follows:

With the Town of I,uisburg to purchase at a minimum 80,000 gallons of water per day. The cuirent

rate is $3.10 per thousand gallons. The obligation ends September20, 2013.

With the City of Henderson to purchase at a minimum 500,000 gallons of water per day. Based on
average consumption, the current rate is 3.52 per thousand gallons. The obligation ends July 1,2036.

With the Town of Franldinton to purchase at a minimum 350,000 gallons of water per day. The cunent

rate is $4.50 per thousand dollars. The obligation ends March 8, 2022.

6. ContInent Liabilities

At June 30, 2008, the County was a defendant to various lawsuits or threatened lawsuits. In the opinion of the
County’s management and the County attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the County’s fmancial position.

7. Lone-Tenu Obll2ations

a. Installment Purchases

In January 1997, the County entered an installment purchase contact with CP in the amount of $225,000 to
purchase certain real estate. The obligation is payable by a down payment of $20,000 in July 1997 and fourteen
annual installments ofprincipal and interest at 4% in the amount of S 19,407 beginning July 1999. Principal and
interest payments are appmpriated when due.

$ 53,859

o On April 30, 2001, the County entered into an installment purchase contract with Branch Banking and Trust in

o the amount of $4,000,000 to finance school construction. A principal amount of $133,333 plus interest at

o 4.81% is due October 30, 2001, and semiannually after that until a final payment due Apnl 30, 2016. Principal

0
0
0
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and interest payments are appropriated when due.
$ 2,133,333

On April 7, 2008, the County entered into an installment purchase agreement to purchase Emergency Medical
Services equipment in the amount of $304,707. A principal amount of $68,487 plus interest at 4.02% is on
April 7 for each of the next five years. Principal and interest payments are appropriated when due.

$ 189,977
In September 2004, the County entered into an installment contract to finance the construction of a solid waste
transfer station and office renovation at the Human Services BuiMing The obligation is due in ten separate
annual payments beginning September 2008. Interest is 3.85%. Principal and interest payments are
appropriated when due.

$ 1.225.000

Total installment purchase debt $ 3.602.169

b. Lon2-term Indebtedness

All general obligation bonds serviced by the County’s General Fund are collateralized by the fhll faith, credit,
and taxing power of the County. Franklin County Water and Sewer Fund issues certificates of participation.
These certificates do not constitute a legal or equitable pledge, charge, lien or encumbrance upon any of the
County’s property or revenue. The County’s long-tenu indebtedness at June 30, 2008 is comprised of the
following:

Serviced by the County’s General Fund:

General Obligation Bonds

$1,400,000 2005 School Bonds, issued 6/1/05, with interest and principal annually
on April 1 of $100,000 plus interest through 2019, interest payable at 3.0-3.8%.

$ 1,100,000
$5,550,000 2005 Refinancing School Bonds, issued 6/1/05, with interest
semiannually on August 1 and April 1 and principal due on April 1 of $220,000-
$550,000 through 2018, interest payable at 2.75-3.50%. 4,875,000

$9,500,000 1998 School Bonds, issued 2/1/98, with interest semiannually on August
I and February 1 and principal due on Febniary I of $475,000 through 2019, interest
payable at 4.6%. 5,225,000

$20,000,000 2006 School Bonds, issued 8/1/07, with interest semiannually on
August 1 and February 1 and principal on August 1 of $1,000,000 through 2026,
interest payable at 4.0-5 .0% 19,000,000

$8,600,000 2008 School Bonds, issued 8/14/2007, with interest semiannually on
August 1 and February I and principal on February I of $200,000 through 2028,
interest at 4.125-6.125% 8.600.000

$ 38.800.000

0
0
0
0
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Certificates of Participation:

$10,505,000 1999 Franklin County Jail, School and Courthouse Refi.inding
Certificates of Participatkn issued 5t23/96, with interest semiannually on
December 1 and June 1 and principal due on June 1 through 2014, interest at 3.1%
to 4.75%. $ 4,252,255

$9,630,000 19% Franldin County Jail, School and Courthouse Refünding
Certificates of Participation, issued 3/1/99 and interest semiannually on December 1
and June I and principal due on June 1 through 2014, interest at 5.27%.

4,100.0000
0
0

Seniced by the County’s Water and Sewer Fund:

o Revolving Loans

$1,500,000 2000 Federal Revolving Loan, issued 2/19/00 with interest due
semiannuafly on November 1 and May 1 and principal of $75,000 due May I
through 2021, interest at 2.6%. $ 975,000

$2,100,000 2000 State Revolving Loan, issued 2/169/00 with interest due
semiannually on November 1 and May I and principal of $105,000 due May I
through 2021, interest at 2.6%. 1.365.000

S 2240.000

Certificates of Participation:

52,040,000 1999 Franklin County Water and Sewer Certificates of Participation,
issued 3/1/99, with interest semiannually on December 1 and June 1 and principal
dueoiilunelthrough2oll,interestat3.l%to4.5%. $ 590,000

$8,995,000 1999 Franldin County Water and Sewer Certificates of Participation,
issued 3/1/99, with interest semiannually on December 1 and June 1 and principal
due on June 1 through 2025, interest at 3.5% to 5.0%. 1,095,000

$3,155,000 2008 Franklin County Water and Sewer Certificates of Participation,
issued June, 2008, with interest and principal annually on September lthrough 2027,
interest at 4% to 5%. 3,155,000

$6,500,000 2004 Franklin County Water and Sewer Certificates of Participatioii,
issued 5/15/03, with interest semiannually on December 1 and January 1 and
principal due on June 1 through 2018, interest at 3.17% to 4.5%. 4,732.547

$ 15.572.547
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On June 30, 2008, Franklin County had a legal debt margin of $165,058,485.

Debt Related to Capital Assets

Of the total Governmental Activities debt above, $6,846,836 relates to assets still held by the County.

8 Chanees in Lone-Term Debt

The following is a summaly of changes in general long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Governmental Activities

Balance Balance Current
July 1.2007 Additions Retirements June 30. 2008 Patton

General obligation bonds $ 32,325,000 $ 8,600,000 $ 2,125,000 $ 38,800,000 $ 2,320,000
Certificates ofparticipation 23.630,681 - 1,183,427 22,447,254 1,075,280
Tnstallmentpurchases 4,131,424 - 529,255 3,602,169 519,103
Compensated absences 1,136,702 1,165,604 1,136,702 1,165,604 1,165,604
Net pension obligation 236,993 256.327 236.993 256327 256.327

Total $ 61.460.800 £ 10.021.931 $ 5.211.377 S 66.271354 S 5136314

Business-type Activities:

By purpose: I
Revolving loans $ 2,520,000 $ - $ 180,000 $ 2,340,000 $ 180,000
Certificates of participation 16,407,221 - 834,674 15,572,547 1,031,085
Compensated absences 51.735 54.559 5 1.735 54.559 54.559

Total S 1&97&956 $ 54.559 511)66.409 S 17.967.106 5 1.265.644

In prior years, the general fluid has liquidated compensation absences. The net pension obligation has not been
liquidated in prior years. Compensated absences are all current since employees could use all of their
accumulated leave within one year.

9. Maturities of Lone-term Oblitatlons

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding (excluding
compensated absences and net pension obligation).
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Governmental Activities:

o General ObliRation Bonds Certificates of Partication
Year Ending June 30. Princinal Inteiest Principal InterestO 2009 $ 2,320,000 $ 1,617,992 $ 1,944,838 $ 1,032,792

Q 2010 2,315,000 1,517,842 2,002,934 945,158
2011 2,310,000 1,419,143 2,062,797 853,895

O 2012 2,305,000 1,321,892 2,124,521 758,769

o 2013 2,295,000 1,229,818 2,188,207 659,312
2014-2018 12,480,000 4,632,740 5,083,957 2,205,268

O 2019-2023 8,325,000 2,295,275 3,525,000 1,319,375

O 2024-2027 6.450.000 647.438 3.515.000 438.625
S 38.800.000 $ 14.681140 $ 22.447,254 S 8213.194

0
O

Installnrnt Purchases Total Debt Due
Year Endinz June 30. Princinal Interest Princijal Interest
2009 $ 519,767 $ 156,363 $ 4,784,605 $ 2,807,147
2010 522.903 133,662 4,840,837 2,596,662C) 201? 526,166 110,835 4,898,963 2,383,873

o 2012 441,667 87,877 4,871,188 2,168,538
2013 441,666 68,312 4,924,873 1,957.442o 2014-2018 1,150,000 87,552 18,713,957 6,925,560
2019-2023 - - 11,850,000 3,614,650
2024-2027 - - 9.965.000 1.086.063o S 3.602.169 S 644.60? S 64.849.423 S 23.539.935

Business-type Activities:

Revolving Loans Certificates of Participation
Year Ending June 30. Princinal Interest Princinal Interest
2009 $ 180,000 $ 60,840 $ 1,031,085 $ 685,436
2010 180,000 56,160 1,066,088 644,058
2011 180,000 51,480 1,102,191 600,118
2012 180,000 46,800 928,577 554,34?
2013 180,000 42,120 960,725 515,914
2014-2018 900,000 140,400 5,298,881 1,979,427
2019-2023 540,000 28,080 3,240,000 964,000
2024-2028 - - 1.945.000 185375

S 2340.000 S 425.880 S 15.572.547 $ 6.128.669

Total Debt Due
Year Endi June 30, Princinal Interest
2009 $ 1,211,085 $ 746,276
2010 1246,088 700,218
2011 1,282,191 651,598
2012 1.108,577 601,141
2013 1,140,725 558,034
2014-2018 6,198.881 2,119,827
2019-2023 3,780,000 992,080
2024-2028 1.945.000 185 375

5 17.911547 $ 6.554.549
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C Interfund Activity

Transfers to/from other funds:

From the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund to supplement other funding
sources $ 85,097

From the General Fund to the Fire District Fund to supplement other funding sources
40,700

From the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund to supplement other funding
sources 354,000

From the General fund to the Airport Capital Project Fund to supplement other
funding sources 33,333

From the General fund to the Community Development Fund to supplement other 45,000
funding sources

From the General Fund to the Revaluation Project Fund to accumulate reserves for
the sexennial revaluation of real property 124,503

From the Capital Reserve Fund to the General Fund for the payment of debt service
2,620,000

From the COPS Capital Project Fund to the General Fund for the payment of debt
service 22,893

From the Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund for debt service 350,000

From the Water and Sewer Capital Project Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund for
debt service 719

Joint Ventures

The Area Mental Health District was established to provide mental health services for five counties: Franklin,
Warren, Granville, Vance, and Nash. Each county has one board member on the Area Mental Health Board,
but none individually has authority to designate management. The County contributed $155,757 to the Area
Mental Health during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The participating governments do not have any
equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the fmancial statements at June 30,
2008. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility to the District because of statutory requirements to
provide funding. Complete fmancial statements for the Area Mental Health can be obtained from their
administrative offices at 107 Industrial Drive, Louisburg, N.C. 27549.

The Kerr Area Rural Transportation Authority (K.A.RT.S.) is an association of five County governments,
including Franklin County. K.A.RT.S. is a joint venture of the participating counties for the purpose of
providing a safe, adequate and convenient transportation system for the jurisdictional area creating the authority
arid its immediate environs. The counties served by KAJtT.S. in addition to Franklin County are Granville,
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o Vance, Warren and Person. Federal, State and local grants and users’ fees provide general support ofo K.A.R.T.S. Each county appoints two members of the Authority management body and this governing body
O

determines the budget and financing requirements of the Authority. The County has an ongoing financialresponsibility for the joint venture because K.A.R.T.S. continued existence depends on the participanto governments’ continued findings. The County contributed $20,482 to K.A.R.T.S. during the fiscal year ended
O June 30, 2008. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equityinterest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2008. Complete financial statements foro K.A.R.T.S. can be obtained from their administrative offices at 943 W. Andrews Avenue, Henderson, N.C.27536.

The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina, Vance County, Granville County, Warren County,o Vance County Board of Education, and Warren County Board of Education, participates in a joint venture to
O operate the Vance Granville Community College. The State, Vance County, Granville County, Vance CountyBoard of Education, and Granville County Board of Education appoint the twelve voting members of the boardof trustees. Franklin County appoints a nonvoting member of the board of trustees. The president of thecommunity college’s student government serves as an ex officio nonvoting member of the community college’sboard of trustees. The connmity college is included as a component unit of the State. The County has thebasic responsibility for providing finding for the facilities of the community college and also provides somefinancial support for the community college’s operations. The County has an ongoing financial responsibilityfor the community college because of the statutory responsibilities to provide finding for the communitycollege’s fhcilities. The County contributed $270,000 and $15,000 to the community college for operating andcapital purposes, respectively, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The participating governments donot have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the County’sfinancial statements at June 30, 2008. Complete financial statements for the community college may beobtained from the community college’s administrative offices at P.O. Box 917, Henderson, N.C. 27536.

Jointly Governed Organization

The Kerr-Tar Council of Government is a voluntary association of five county governments, including FranklinCounty, established to coordinate federal and State pixjects of a planning nature in the five-county area inCentral North Carolina. Each county appoints one member to the Council’s governing body and this governingbody selects the management and determines the budget and financing requirements of the Council. TheCounty contributed $22,354 to the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Supplemental and Additional Supplemental One-Half of One Percent Local Government Salts and UseTaxes

State law (Chapter 105, Articles 40 and 42, of the North Carolina General Statutes) requires the County to use aportion of the proceeds of its supplemental and additional supplemental sales taxes, or local option sales taxes,for public school capital outlays or to retire public school thdebtedness During the fiscal year ended June 30,2008, the County reported these local option sales taxes within its Special Revenue Fund. The Countyexpended the restricted portion of these taxes for public school capital outlays and retirement of public schooldebt.
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VII. Benefit Payments Issued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State moneys.
County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility detenninations that cause benefit
payments to be issued by the State. These amounts disclose this additional aid to County recipients, which do
not appear in the basic fmancial statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.

Federal State
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families $ 349,945 $ -

Medicaid 38,977,922 30,472,129
Food Stamp Program 6,987,347 -

Energy Assistance 133,633 -

Adoption Assistance 164,803
State/County Special Assistance for Adults - 520,938
Title IV - E Foster Care 93,540 15,688
Special Supplemental Nutrition program for Women, Infants, and
Children 911.538

$ 47.618.728 $ 31.008.755

VIII. Summary Disclosure of Si2nilicant Commitments and Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements.
Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any
required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for
the refimd of grant moneys.

IX. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events

The County passed a $53,000,000 bond issue in November, 2007 for school construction. It is anticipated that
the County will issue $34,000,000 in bonds during the 2008-2009 fiscal year.

The County received a $500,000 grant to build a new recreational park in the Pilot area. The County plans to
issue debt for matching funds during the 2008-2009 fiscal year.

The County has requested proposals for the improvements in radio communications. The bids are estimated to
be about $3.0 million. Related debt will be issued during December 2008.

X. Restatement of Net Assets

Prior year’s Net Assets included consnction in process of school buildings. Beginning of year net assets in
Exhibit 2 has been reduced by $20,251,430, since the County does not retain ownership of these properties once
they are completed.



Required Supplemental Financial Data

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance

Schedule of Enqloyer Contributions for the Law Enfacement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance

Notes to the Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Law Eriforccment Officers’ Special Separaflon Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued

Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL) UAAL as a %
Valuation Value of Projected Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets Unit Credit AAL. (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
12131/1996 $ - $ 117,702 S 117,702 0.00% $ 812,112 14.49%
12/31/1997 - 137,416 137,416 0.00% 884,420 15.54%
12/3111998 - 164,981 164,981 0.00% 1,000,145 16.50%
12/3111999 - 176,025 176,025 0.00% 1.171,956 15.02%
12/31/2000 - 264,180 264,180 0.00% 7,233,208 21.42%
12131/2001 - 244,371 244,37! 0.00% 1,246,941 19.60%
12/31/2002 - 287,065 287.065 0.00% 1,203,218 23.86%
12/31/2003 - 317,852 317,852 0.00% 1,287,731 24.68%
12/31/2004 - 360,564 360,564 0.00% 1,464,050 24.63%
12/31/2005 - 259,794 259,794 0.00% 1,541,884 16.85%
12131/2006 - 252,547 252,547 0.00% 1,697,594 14.88%
12/31/2007 - 299.326 299,326 0.00% 2,089,098 14.33%

I



Exhibit II

Franklin County, North Carolina
Law Enforcements Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year ended Annual Required Percentage
June30 Contribution Contributed

1998 0.00%o 1999 19,798 0.000/.,

O 2000 22,435 0.00%
200! 26,186 0.00%o 2002 29,610 0.00%
2003 33,028 0.00%

LI 2004 33,028 0.00%o 2005 34,445 0.00%
2006 38,852 0.00%
2007 26,546 0.00%
2008 37,340 0.00%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was detemüned as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Only seven years of actuarial information is available. Additional
information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date 12/31/2007
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 23 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25%
Projected salary increases 4.5-12.3%
Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost-of-living adjustments n/a





0
0
0
0
0
o AJOR GOVERNMENTAL UNDS
0

General Fund accounts for all financial resources of the County except those that are
required to be accounted for in another fund.

0 School Construction Fund - This capital projects fund accounts for the construction
0 of school buildings within the County. Currently, a major fund.





Exh8it 12

Franklin County. North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenue,. Expendilures. and
Changes in Fund Balances Budge, and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30. 2008
With. Comparative Totals For die Year Ended June 30. 2007)

2004 2007
Variance
PosItive

Budget Actual (NeaslIve) Actual
Revenues:

Ad valoreni taxes:
Tans 29.821.570 S 30.406.451 $ 27.956.492
Penalties and interest 475.000 314.960

____________________

428.677
Total 5 30.296.870 30.721.411 5 424.541 28.385.169

Local option sale, iaxes
Ankle 39 one percent 2.234.054 3.047081
Ankle 40 one’halfof one percent 2.334,450 2.13 1.563
Article 42 ooe’halfofooe percent 2.324.343 1.212.606
Asticle44

__________________

1.525.966

_________________

2.028.569
Total 9.042.923 8.418.813 (624.110) 8.419.819

Other taxes and licenses:
Poivilege licenses 1.500 2.376 876 2.305

Unresuicted intergovernmental:
Gasoline lax reBind - 107 563
Slate DWI fees 5.500 6.521 6.715
Beer and wine tax 128.000 216.664 208.104
White goods tax 21300 19.586 16.653
Occupancy tax 60.000 58.468 60.229
Franchise Fees 100.000 145.033
Tire disposal fees 45.000 46352 56.567
Hold Hannless 187.040 144.914

_____________ _____________

Total 546.840 637.646 90.806 348.831

Resuicted intergovernmental:
Federal and Slate grants 7.912.386 8.184.074 6.315.862
LoneiyProceeds 364.l45 364.145 500.000
Coon facility fees 135.000 135.039 136.824
ABC hollies taxes 12.000 12.464 12.083
School ADM Funds 350.000 350.000

___________ ___________

Total 8.773.531 9.045.722 272.191 6.964.769

Pennils and fees:
Building peonits 214200 97.470 3 12.020
Inspection fees 1.284,564 1.132.199 1.055.782
Register of Deeds fees 775.000 686.700 786.964
Adequate Facilities Frrs . 291388
Recreation Reserve Fees . 60.637

__________________

total 2.277.764 2.268.394 (9.370) 2.154.766

Sales and services:
Reals, concessions, and fees 50.000 53.490 60,261
health fees 3.466.000 3.034.167 3.409.863
Social services 335.931 496.561 304.747
Aging services 84.000 114.186 654.678
Airpoet 658.200 621.559 509.995
Sherill’andjail fees 1,340.450 l.614.082 l.041306
I.ibra,y fees and donations 24.800 34,439 39.094
Solid waste fees 2.016,123 2.091.138 2.042355
Ambulance and rescue squad fees 1.029.165 926338 1.123.562
Recreation 44.000 30.394 30372
Other 60.725 81,191

__________________

214,304
Total 9.109.394 9.097.445 (11.949) 9,431.137

Invetuneitleantings 900.000 931.021 31.021 1.214.619

Miscellaneous:
Donations and private granls 50.511 15.403
Insurance proceeds 10.000 0.865 30.987
Special assessments . 42.076
other 73.800 68.407

____________________

99.806
Total 134,311 117.675 (16.636) 172.869

Total revenues 61.083.133 61.240,503 157.370 57,094.284



Exhtit 12
(continued)

Franidin County. North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes a Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For he Year Ended June 30. 2008
(With Conparative Totals (or the Yen Ended June 30. 2007)

2008 2007
Varia.ee
Ndn

I.e. Aetni (Neg*Itn) Aetna)
Es padifurn:

General gbvnir:
Goveertlig body:

Sa$es employee benefits S IS?. IS) 5 160.933
Oôer openniag expeadittees 86.711 90347
lnsunatceotherd.aitpropcrty

_______________

2.242

_______________

2.135
Total $ 210.258 276.106 S 4.152 253.415

S.briesndentployeebeeaefit 212.517 86.592
0dm’ opuat.g expend’es 64.82) 40.15$
Leplmdpmfessional

_______________

117.161

________________

60.449
ThaI 387.750 394.5(4 (6.758) 217.1%

Salflesanden.ployeebeneriis 177.128 166.952
Other ripesamig expenditures

___________________

97.758

___________________

88.107
Total 287.084 274.886 12.198 255.059

Salaries and employee benefits 318.051 285.882
Other openting expendilures 58.703 72.590
Capital outlay

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

Total 359.234 376.754 12.40 358.472

Taxes:
Salaries and employee benefits 707.9 10 659.774
Oilier operating expenditures 474.262 259.390
Capital outlay

___________________

.

___________________

174.069
Total 1.148.274 1.182.172 66.102 1.093.233

Register of Deeds: a
Salaries and employee benefits 289.229 268.834
Other operating expenditures 95.132 87.491
Debt service 7.735
Capital outlay

_________________

.

_________________

7.0 12
Total 414.756 392.096 22.660 363.337

Public building,:
Salaries said employee benefits 479.279 417.347
Other operating expenditures 312.426 306.227
Land said building purchases . 2.505.958
Capital outlay

____________

266.793

____________

261.317
Total 1084.052 I .05L49t 25.554 3,493.049

Coin’ facilities:

_______________ ________________ _______________ _______________

Operatilegexpeadiewus 75.880 73.144 2.736 49.251

lnfo.matio. technology sevices
Snies ad employee benefits 112.936 80.448
Other operating expenditures

____________

26445

____________

29.090
Total 162.218 139.601 22.617 09.338

GIS Macping:
Salajes and employee benefits 145.219 43.587
Oeoperatingnpendiewes 31381 64.252
Capitalo.attay

_______________ ________________ _______________ _______________

Total t93.990 176.600 17390 207.839

Otergenersjgose,amncnt 507.752 451.476 56.276 416.675

Tntal reneral toyrneng 5.031.245 4.795.841 235.407 6.887.064



Ed’ti( 12Q
0
Q

Fnfl (‘o.nev. Nonh Cantlina
Geanl Fund

Schedule 0f Revenues. Expeisdimess, and() Changes a Fund Balance, - Budget and Aclual
For the Yen Ended June 30. 200*Q (With Comaratise Toials for the Yen, F,adcd Suite 30. 2007At33)

zoes 2007
Vafl.nce
PeIve

Budget Actual (Negative) Actualo Public s.fetr
She,ifF and ataoets

Q Saheje, and employee benefits $ 2.960.672 $ 2.657.942Other operaiin expenditures 2.988.806 752.946() Capital outlay

___________________

.

___________________

295.113Total $ 6.107.204 5,949.478 $ 157.726 3.706.001

Jail:
Salaries and employee benefits 1.701.564 .487.876Other operating expenditures 936.924 767.128Capital outlay

_________________

-

_________________

15.771Total 2.652.800 2.638.48* 14.312 2.270.773

3d mseid,:
Salts and employee benefit, 232.816 203.017Other operatiig expenditures 481.230 379.341Capital outlay

____________ ____________ ____________ ____________

Total 728.059 714.046 14.013 582.358

Medical ezawhaer
Contacted services 25.000 26.375 (1.375) 23.950

Emergency management:
Salsiesad employee benefig 234.323 237.187Other OPfl CXP1tISt5 140.010 54,480Capital outlay

_____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Total 358.511 374.333 (15.822) 291.667

Forest rn ccnwot service 93,620 91.832 1.788 87,498
Code enforcement:

SaIa,jes and employee benefit, 518.865 394.038Other operaerng expenditures 90,389 66.780
Capitai outlay

____________ ____________ ____________ ____________

Toed 646.764 609,254 37.510 $60318

Emergency conamunicatiops:
Salaries and employee benefits

575.020Odaeroperatuag expendinees
168.232Tool
743.252

Rescue imita:
Salaries and employee benefits 2.422,594 2,014.849Rescue waits 754.958 715.137Other operating expendiages 588.384 388367
C’çiaaloenlay

_______________

.

________________

91.251Tool 3.802.445 3.765,936 36.509 3.219404
Mimal coiatsol:

Salaries and employee benefits 235.407 215.769Other oqae,at..g expenditures 79,528 os.nsCapital outlay

_____________

.

_____________

18.653ToW 312.368 3)4.935 (2.567) 339,957

Comasiunity-based alternatives:
SaIariesaaadenloyeebenefat, 124.091 72.510Other operating expendinses

___________________

35.610

___________________

37.282Total 86.994 159.701 27.293 109.792
Other public safety

.

T.nebIk e,fm 13.913.765 14.644.37* 269387 I 1.935.672



Exhtd 12
(contkiued)

FranklIn County, North CarolIna
Gates.) Fw,d

Sckth.le uS Revenes. Expendiawn. sad
Ch.agn a Fmd Bahicu - Budpa tad Aetal

For the Year Ended Si.e 30.2008
(With Cooçniive Totals for the Year Ended Ste 30.2007)

_______________

lit?
V. flint.
PettIly.

BodEd .4st.aal (Nentlve) Anvil
Economic and physical development

Agricultural extension:

Salaries and employee benefits $ 5.962 $ 0.078
Other operating expenditures 314.352 299.940
Capital outlay

___________________

- 7.949
Total $ 349.356 320.314 S 29.042 ii 7.967

S ii and water coaservationt
saheie.aençIo,nw,rn 191.270 194.170
Other operating expendMres

_________________

19.870

_________________

21.74*
Toed 243.872 211.140 32,732 215.918

Salaries and cwçloyee ber.efiu 221.520 204.669
Other operat.g eqeadietna 139.113 97.883
Capital outlay

___________________

.

___________________

40376
total 373.106 361.333 11.773 342.928

Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits 426.731 356.547
Oilier operating expenditures

_________________

157.432

_________________

135.617
Toni 585.427 584.163 1.264 492.164

Airpott:
Operathag expenditures 128,169 119.468
Other operating expenditures 570.156 164.237
Conactd savices
Fuel pachases

- 274.24
Capialooday

____________

.

____________

14.109
total 709.670 691325 11.345 572.062

Salaries s.d employee benefIts 74331 722.631
Wasa dsspoaj eact

. .443359
Other operating expendlaures 2.441365 719.204
Capital outlay

_________________

.

_________________

121.947
Total 3.188.538 3.189.696 (1.158) 3.007.141

Other economic development

Toblnde&nhnk.l

_________

5.449.969 5364.971 84.998 4548.180

Human services:
HeaI*

S.lsie.andemployeebeacfn 8113S4 731.121
Coa,uactaa.l soviets

- 32.940
Other operatwsg expendites 123.711 75.362
Capital outlay

______________ ______________ ______________ ______________

foul 977.730 935.065 42.715 839.423

TitaN, clinic’
Salaries and employee benefits 1.555.220 1.545.935
Contmetaaal services

- 374.727
other operating expenditures 826,914 316.813
C’apital outlay

___________________

.

___________________

19.542
Total 2.505.230 2.382.134 23.096 2.257.017



0
ExitIt 120 (continued)

0
FranklIn County. North Carolina

0 General Fund
Schedule of Revenues. Etpendinsrcs. and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For iho Yen Laded June 30.2008

With (onw,nlin Totals for tie Year Ended Jiae 30. 2007+M4)

2448 2617
Varia see

Q Budiat Actual (Netative) Actual

Home health:

0 Salaries and employee benefits $ 840.214 $ 883.911
C’oniraciual services 155.034

0 Other operating expenditures

_________________

435.876

_________________

374.063
Total S 1.487.728 1.276.090 $ 211.638 1.413.008o

Sahries and employee ba.elits 200.885 173.946
Other opera’g expeadeares

_________________

298.024

_________________

319.486
Total 528.321 498.909 29.412 493.432

Totathealili 5,499.059 5.092.198 406361 5.002.880

Social services:
Adminisaslion:

Salaries mad employee benefits 4.392.948 3.976.053
Odaeroperatiaigexpenditures 633.291 711.828
Professional services

. 100.562
Capital outlay

________________

.

________________

84.512
Total 5,067.749 5.026.239 41.510 4.872.956

Medkaid propan.:
Assisaacepa>inats 3.008.040 2361316 139.324 3.177.041

Special asstsanct p0gm
Assislaice payment 484.482 523.041 (38359) 474.115

Work First
Assistance payments 25.198 26.260 (1.062) 49.382

Foster care
Assistance payments 303.500 304.597 (1.097) 537.748

Crisis intervention:
Assistancepaymeals 184.799 184,799 . 191.428

Gofl ntan p0fl

Asslstne payments 20,000 19.934 16 19.867

Day Care peogast
Astistaace payments 2.633,285 2302.225 386.060 1.931.234

Other nice:
Assistance payments 695388 592.574 102314 285380

Chore sevicw
Other operating expendilures - - ‘ 26.207

Total social sentices 12.477,441 11.848.235 629.106 11.565364

Aging pTonm:
Sahein and enwlflyee benefIts 718.300 511,74
Contracted services

‘ 262.841
Odopcradngezpeadiiares

______________

491.057

______________

341.185
Total 1.203.647 1.209.857 (6.2t0) 1.115.174



Exhtit 12
(continued)

Fr.pldln County. North Carolina
Cjc,IeTaI Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expendinces. and
Changes ñ Fimd 8.n - %dgct and Act,aal

Ft. the Yeas Ended lime 30.200*
(With Compntlve To.ak for the Yes Ended lime 30. 2007)

2008 2017
Vaflant.
Positive

8udget Actual (Nentlve) Actual
Mental health adntinintratioo:

Contacted services $ 155.757 $ 155.757 $ . $ 155.757

Veteran, service ymca:
Salaries and e.nployce benefits 93.040 83.533
Other operating expenditures

_________________

11.603

_________________

4.559
Toed 106.371 04.643 1.528 92.092

Or hmg. nfl

____________ ____

Total hans ewes 19.442.075 18.410690 1.031.384 17.937367

Culhnl and recreational:
Asia and Reereation:

Salaries and employee benefits 237.909 223.653
Other operstuig expenditure, 650,080 309433
Capital outlay

_______________

-

Total 950.072 887.989 62.083 533.186

Librarier
Salaries and employee benefit, 515.531 511.744
Other operating npendatnes 222.077 I 14.719
Books. nuprines & ieleco.rna.icanons

- I 04.669
Capital outlay

_____________

.

_____________

21.802
Toed 739434 737.608 1.926 752.934

Other caird and reantical .

Total wkwe a,d reereatice, 1.689.606 1425.597 64.009 1.286.120

Education:
Public schools- cureenl 11.200.520 10.601.444
Public schools- capital outlay 1.202.637 1.202.637
Public schools (lottery) capital outlay 303.593
Comrrainity collages. current 270.000 135.000
Community college,. capital outlay

______________

15.000

______________

270.000

Toed edacatiot 12.991.750 12.991.750 . 12.209.0*1

Debt wv
Principal retieniest 3.837.682 2.738.778
b.eest and kes

_____________

2.500.273

_____________

1.697.224

Total t service 6.522.342 6.345.955 176.387 4.436.002

Total espenditure, 66.040.755 64.179.182 1.861.573 59.639.986

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4.957.622) (2.938.679) 2.018.943 (2.545.702)



ExPibit 12
(concluded)

Franklin County. North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, E.pcnditwes. and
Cinmges in Fund Balances - Bud#l and Anal

For the Year Ended Stir 3D. 2008
(With Cooamtive Totals For the Year Ended Sire 30. 2007)

209€ 2461
Variance

Favorable

C:) Budeet Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Other financing sources (urn)

Transfers to other funds:() Fire District Fund S (40.700) S (40.700) S - 5 (40.700)
Flwmn Senices Buidings Fund - -

Q Pwchase o(Assets Water and Sewer Fund
Water and Sewer Fwid (85.097) (85.097) (300.000)

Q
Water awl Sewer Capial Pr*cts Fund
Capital Resent Fund (354.) (354.000)
Revaluation Fund (124,503) (124,503) (55.800)Q Conaminity Development Fund (45,000) (45.000)
Airport Fund (33333) (33.333) - (33.333)

() Total transfers out (682.633) (682,633) - (429.833)

O Transfers fi-om oilier funds:
Capital Resent Fund 2.620.000 2.620.000 . 2.620.000

O Waler awl Sewer Fi 350. 350,
WatnandsewerCapäalprqjectsFnrid - 719 719 1.508

Q COPS Caplial P,oect Fund 25. 22.893 (2.1 07) 74.669
Totaitramknin 2.995.000 2.993.612 (1,388) 2.696.372

Issuance of debt . . -

Sale ofcapiial asses 155,000 245.728 90.728 5.000

Total other financing sources
(es)net 2.467.367 2,556.707 89340 2.271.344

Revenues and other financing sources
o’ (wider) expenditures and other
flricing uses (2,490.255) (321.972) 2.108.283 (274358)

Appttqaiated fund babace 2.490,255
. (2,490,255)

Revert. other lInnng sources and
appropriated fund babnce over (under
expenditures and other uses $ . (381.972) $ (383.972) (274.358)

Fund babnces
Beginning of year. July I 18,597,430 18.897.283

Increase (decrease) is reserve for inventory 30.974 (25.495)

Endofyear, Sire 30 5 18.246.432 S 18397,430



Exhibit 13

Franklin Cnnly, North Carolina
School Construction Fund

Schedule of Rewnues. Expenditures. and
(‘hanges in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Incept ion and for the Year Ended June 30. 2008

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
izatpon Year Year Date (Negative)

Rennet
Resthcicd intergovernmental $ 192.983 $ - $ - $ - $ (192.983)

Interest earnings 562.312 785.057 548.854 1333.911 771.599

Total revenues 155.295 785.057 548,854 1,333.911 518.616

Expenditures
Bond issuance costs - 479 - 419 (479)

Construction 43,980.833 21,151.565 18.994.808 40.146.373 3.834.460

Total revenues 43.980.833 21.152,044 8.994.808 40.146.852 3,833.981

Other financing sources
Sales tax refund 587.688 479 - 479 (587.209)
Issuance of debt 42.637.850 32.8! 5,000 8.600,000 41.415,000 (1,222.850)

Total other soumes 43,225,538 32.815,479 8.600,000 41.415,479 (1.810.059)

Revenues and other flnancing
sources over (under) expendItures $ - $ 12,448,492 (9.845,954) $ 2.603,017 $ 2.603,017

Fad balance
Beginningotyear. July I 13.242.165

Endofyear,June3O $ 3,396.211



Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Capital Reserve Fund - This is the Countys Fund to account for money held for
future capital purposes.

Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for tax revenues collected by the County
on behalf of the various fire districts within the County.

Emergency Telephone System Fund - This fund accounts for the 911 revenues
collected by the telephone industry to hind the 911 emergency system.

DEA Fund - This hind accounts for money received for drug control purposes.

Golden Leaf Foundation Fund - This hind accounts for money received from
the Golden Leaf Foundation.

Community Development Fund - This hind accounts for Community Development
Block Grant hinds.

Revaluation Fund - This fund accounts for expenditures for the sexennial
revaluation of real property.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary and trust hinds.

COPS Capital Project Fund - This fund accounts for capital projects financed

by certificates of participation.

Airport Projects Fund - This hind accounts for the construction at the Franklin
County Airport.

County Building Project Fund - This fund accounts for renovation of the

o Human Services Building.

0 Revaluation Project Fund - This fbnd accounts for expenditures for the sexennial

0 revaluation of real property.

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

______
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Exhibit 16

Fnnklhi County, North Carolina
Capital Resent Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
(‘hanges in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Yea,’ Ended June 30. 2008
(With Coniparotive Totals For the Year Ended June 30. 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Netive) Actual
Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental $ 2.690.000 $ 2.188.942 .$ 98.942 $ 2.132.436
Interest earnings - 23.598 23.598 29.307

Total revenues 2,690.000 2.812.540 122,540 2,761.743

Exjsendk. ret
Education 70,000 70,000

Other tinsciag sources (uses)
Transfer from Genetal Fund - 354.000 354.000 -

Transfer to General Fund (2,620,000) (2.620,000)

___________

(2,620.000)
Total other financing sources (tat)- net (2.620.000) (2.266.000) 354.000

Revenues and other financIng
sources under expenditures and uses $ - 476,540 $ 476.540 S 14 1.743

Fund balance
Beginningof year. July I 949.103 801,360

End of year. June 30 $ 1,425.643 S 949,103



Exhibit 17

Franklin County, North Carolina
Fire District Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30. 2008
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,944,312 3 1,958,940 $ 14,628 $ 1.741,283
Inierest Income

- 5849 5,849 1,864
1,944,312 1,964,789 20,477 1,743,147

Expenditures
Public safety

Central Fire District 165,000 165,000 . 147,583
Epsom Fire District 85,000 74,844 10,156 70,494
Gold Sand Fire District 43,000 43,000

- 50,312
Justice Fire District 82,000 82,000 - 75,000
Kittrell Fire District 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Pilot Fire District 144.383 144.383

- 129,494
White Level Fire District 66,500 66,500 - 63,000
Brassfield Fire District 6.000 5,768 232 6,000Mitchiners Crossroads Fire District 115,200 115,200

- 114,750
Hopkins Fire District 8,570 8,570 7,572
Franklinton Fire District 198,310 198.3)0

- 187,205
Youngsville Fire District 695,068 695,068 - 623.286
Bunn Fire District 318.781 318.781 309,626
Castalia Fire District 1,200 1,200 - 1,200Centerville Fire District 55,000 54,019 981 51,500Total expenditures 1,985,012 1,973,643 11,369 1,838,022

Revenues under expenditnres (40,700) (8,854) 31,846 (94,875)

Other financing sources
Transfer from General fund 40,700 40,700

. 40,700

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues and other socces under
expenditures $ - 31.846 $ 31.846 (54,175)

Fund balances
Bcginning of year, July I 42,159 96.334

End of year. June30 S 74,005 $ 42,159



Exhibit IS

Franklin County, North Carolina
Emergency Telephone System Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008

______

2007
Vail ance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues

Other taxes and licenses
EDllfees $ 280,000 S 297,115 5 17,115 S 287.125

Restricted intergovernmental:
Wireless communications 85,000 100,844 15,844 136,274

Interest earnings 1,500 35,946 34,446 36,520
Total revenues 366,500 433,905 67,405 459,919

Expenditures
Public saftty- £911

Operating expenses 92,878 94.639 (1,761) 86,183
Capital outlay 59,250 24,926 34,324 33,834

Total 152,128 119,565 32,563 120,017

Public safety - wireless communications
Operating expenses 235,218 87,568 147,650 196,049

Total expenditures 387,346 207,133 180,213 316,066

Revenues over (under) expenditures (20,846) 226,772 247,618 143,853

Appropriated fund balance 20,846
- (20,846)

Revenues and appropriated fund balance over
expenditures S - 226,772 5 226.772 143,853

Fund balances
Beginning of year. July I 944,257 800,404

End ofyear, June30 5 1,171,029 $ 944,257



Exhibit 19

Franklin County, North Carolina
DEA Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30. 2008
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30. 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental $ 190.000 S 188,786 S (1,214) $ 47,608Interest income

- 1.945 1.945 -Total revenues 190.000 190.731 73? 47,608

Expetiditires
Public safety

Operating expenses 190.000 I 64,487 25,513 46.327

Revenues over expenditures S - 26,244 5 26,244 1,281

Fund balances
Beginning ofyear, July I 21,193 19,912

Endofyear,June3O $ 47.437 S 21,193



Exhibit 20

FranIdla County. North Carolhta
Golden Leaf Foundation Project

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and 1w the Year Ended June 30. 2008

Project Actual

________

Variance
Audio,- Prior Current Total to Positive
ization Year Year Date (Negative)

Reyenes
Restricted intergovernmental

Golden Leaf Foundation $ 1.975.000 $ 809493 S - 5 809.693 $ (1.165.307)
Stategrants - 21.251 - 21.251 21.251
Interest earnings - 2.256 - 2.256 2,256

Total revenues 1.975.000 833,200 - 833.200 (1,141.800)

Expenditures
Education 1.975,000 809.693 - 809.693 1.165.307

Revenues over expendItures - 23.507 23.507 23.507

Other financIng sources
Tnnsfers from other funds - 133,946 . 133,946 133.946

Revenues and other financing
sourcesoverexpetiditures $ - S 157,453 . $ (57.453 $ 157.453

Ftmd balace
Beginning of year. July I 23.507

End of year. June30 $ 23301

I



Exhibit 2!

Franklin County, North Carolina
Community Development Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
ization Years Year Date (Negative)

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental

CDBG Agreement 06-C-1616 $ 700,000 $ - $ 20,047 $ 20,047 $ (679,953)
Clean Water Tnist Fund 2007•8 10 45,000 - -

- (45,000)
Interest - - 949 949 949
Repayment of land sale - CDBG - - 3,204 3,204 3,204
Louisburg contribution 5,000 - -

- (5,000)
Total revenues 750,000 - 24,200 24,200 (725,800)

Expenditures
Scattered Site 750,000 - 28,449 28,449 721,551
Clean Water Project 50,000 4,000 4,000 46,000

Total expenditures 800,000 32,449 32,449 767,551

Revenues under expenditures (50,000) - (8,249) (8,249) 41,751

Other financing sources
Transfer from General fund 50,000 - 45,000 45,000 (5,000)

Reven.es and oilier financing sources over
expendit.res $ - $ - 36.751 $ 36.751 5 36,751

Fund balance
Beginning of year. July I 29278

End of year, June30 $ 66,029



Exhibit 22

0
Franklin County, North Carolina

Revaluation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

2008
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer to Capital Project Fund (600.721) (600,721) -

Appropriated Fund Balance 600,721 - (600,721)

Other financing sources (uses) - net $ - (600,721) $ (600,721)

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1 600,721

Endofyear,June3O $ -

a
0

0



Exhibit 23

Franklin County, North Carolina
COPS Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30. 2008

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
ization Years Year Date (Negative)

0 Revenues

o Investment earnings $ 75,000 $ 113,500 $ 38,654 $ 152,154 $ 77,154

Q Other financing uses

o Transfer to General fUnd (75,000) - (22,893) (22.893) 52,107

Revenues over uses $ - $ 113,500 15,761 5 129,261 $ 129,261

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July I 843,684

End of year, June 30 $ 859,445



Exhibit 24

Franklin County, Poflh Carolina
Airport Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures, and
(lmngcs in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Actual Vanance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
iration Years Year Date (Negative)

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:

Inlerestincome $ - $ 10,436 $ 4,850 5 15,286 $ 15,286
Project No. 36244.43.7.1 State 40236 29,788 - 29,788 (10,448)
Project No. 36237.31.7.1 Federal 150,000 74,027 75,973 150,000 -

Other projects - net

_____________

25,858

______________

25,858 25.858
Total revenues 190,236 140,109 80,823 220,932 30,696

Expenditures
Capital outlay:

ProjectNo. 36244.43.7.) State 44,707 33217 - 33,217 11,490
Project No.36237.31.7.1 Federal 166,667 166,667 (11,023) 155,644 11,023
Administrative costs - - 23.964 23,964 (23,964)

Total expenditures 211,374 199,884 12,941 212,825 (1,451)

Revesus under- expendltni-es (21,138) (59.775) 61,882 8,107 29245

O4hn rina.cing sources
Transferfromoeneral fund 21.138 16,667 33,333 50,000 28,862

Revenues and other flnanclng sources
over(under)expenditures $ - $ (43.108) 101,215 $ 58,107 $ 58,107

Fund balance
Brnning of year, July 1 130,976

Endofyear,June3O 3 232,191



Franklin County, North Carolina
County Building Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
(‘banges in Fund Balances - Budget and ACLIJaT

From Incep4ion and for the Year Ended June 30. 2008

ExNbil 25

Expenditures
Consinictien (350.000 1,211.452 894A92 2.111,944 161,944

Other financing sources
Issuance ofdebt
Transfer from General fund

Total other sourtes

1,280,000
654 .82 5

1,934,825

1,280,000
654,825

1,934,825

(10,000)
654,825
584.825

TM.) revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ 119,201 (836,502) S (117301) $ (117,301)

Fund balance
Beginning of year. July I 1.326,521

0
0

Revenues
Interest earnings

Project Actual
Author- Prior Current
ization Year Year

Total to
Dale

S - $ 1.828 $ 51,990 $ 59,818 S 59,818

Vanance
Positive

jçgative)

1.350,000

1,350,000

End of year, June30 $ 490,025



EhibiI 26

Franklin County. North Carolina
Revaluation Project Fund

Schedule or Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
ization Year Year Date (Neptive)

Revenue
Interesteamings S - $ - S 18,425 $ 18,425 $ 18,425

Expenditures
Appraisal 708.000 151.840 151.840 (556.160)

Other financing sources
Transfer 1mm General fund 108,000 - 124,503 124.503 16.503
Transfer from Special Revenue Fund 600.000 - 600.721 600,121 721

Total other soulves 708.000 . 725.224 725,224 17.224

Total revenue and other flna.cla
seurcesoverexpendliures $ - $ - 591.809 $ 591,809 S 591,809

Fund balance
Beginning of year. July I

Endofyear,June3O S 591,809



0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

E TERP 1SF NIS

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund accounts for operation of

the County’s water and sewer operations.

Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund - This fund

accounts for construction of water and sewer capital assets
within the County.

These two/lends are coin bined in the fit/I accrual exhibits.
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Q
Exhibit 27

0
Q Franklin Coirnty, Nonh Carolina

Water and Sewer FundC) Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended june 30, 2008

Variance
O Positive

Actual (Negative)O Revenues
Operating revenues

Q Water lees $ 4.343258 $ 4,009.957 S (333.301)Sewer fees 1.333.333 1,093.469 (239,864)Q Other charges for services 847.400 738.042 (109.358)
6.523.99) 5.841.468 (682,523)

Nonoperating revenues:

Q Interest earnings
- 78.442 78.442

Total revenues 6,523,991 5.919.910 (604.08))

() Other financing source (use)
Operat mg grant

- 40.000 40.000Q Transfers from Genera) fund (350,000) (350,000)

_____________

Total other financing sources (use) - net (350,000) (310,000) 40,000
Expeaditura - Water Dept() Salaries and employee benelits 574.856 545,102 29.154Water purchases 2.875,000 343.073 2,531.927(3 Other operating expenditures 299,575 2.663.857 (2.364.282)Capital outlay 105,800 105.800Q Debt service:

Interest and other charges 425.280 422,779 2,50!(3 Debt principal 450,000 450,000
-

Q
Total expenditures - Water 4,730.511 4.424,811 305,700

Expetiditieres - Sewer Dept() Salaries and employee benefit 311340 253,493 58.347Contracted services 141,850 121.388 20.462Other operating expenditures 398.925 476. [61 (77,236)Debt seMce:
Interest and ocher charges 3 17,207 242.250 74.957Debt principal 5 64.675 564,75! (76)Total expenditures - Sewer 1.734,497 1.658.043 76.454

Total expenditures 6.465.008 6.082.854 382.154
Apprtipdatedio.db.Jaace 291.017 (291,017)
Revenues, appropriated fond balance, and

other financing sources ever expenditures S - 5 (472.944) $ (472,944)

ReconcIlIatIon from budgetary basis
(modified accrual) to foil accrual
Revenues and other financing 3O’uceS over expenditures $ (472,944)Debt service payment 1.014.751Depreciation (876,790)Capital outlay

-Increase in accvued vacation pay

_________

Water and Sewer Fund full accnial (334.983)

Water and Sewer Capital Project Fund lull accnjai 271.354

Change in net assets $ (63.629)



Franklin County, North Carolina
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Nori-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Prior Current
Year Year

Exhibit 28

0
0
0

Expenditures
(‘onstruction 14.363.615 7,33 I ,603 175,674 7.507,277 6,856,338

Revenues over (under) expenditures (11,711.615) (5,194,937) 11.302 (5.183,635) 6.527,980

ApproprIated fund balance 1,099,398 (1,099,398)

Revenues, appropriated fund balance, and other
financing sources over expendItures and uses

ReconciliatIon from budgetary basis
(modified accrual) to full accrual
Revenues and other sources Over expenditures and

other uses
Capital outlay

$ - $ 2,157,351 $ 95.680 $ 2.253,03 I $ 2.253,031

$ 95,680
175,674

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:

Federal grants
State grants

Investment earnings
Total revenues

Project
AuthorS
at ion

Total to
Date

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

0
0
0

$ 2,250.000 S 959,599 $ - $ 959.599 $ (1.290,40 I)
400,000 1,150,000 - 1.150,000 750,000

2.000 27,067 186.976 214.043 212.043
2,652.000 2,136.666 186,976 2,323,642 (328,358)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer from General fund 419,917 420,197 85,097 505,294 85,377
Transferto General fund (2,000) . (719) (719) 1,281
Transfer from Water and Sewer fund 600,000 600,000 - 600,000
Transfer to Water and Sewer Fund (167,850) (167,909) (167,909) (59)
Proceeds from debt 9.762,150 6,500,000 - 6,500.000 (3,262.150)

Total other financing sources (uses) - net 10.612,217 7.352.288 84,378 7,436,666 (3.175.551)

$ 271.354
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

0
o Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financingo of goods and services provided by one department or othero departments of the County.
0

Insurance Fund — This fund is used to account for the
County’s insurance transactions.

0
0
0
0
0
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Eapendltures
Health insurance
Property and liability insurance
Wockns’ conwensailon insurance
Unemployment claims

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Franklin County. North Carolina
Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30.2008

(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30. 2007)

2008
Variance

2007

Fxhihit 29

Fnd balances
Beginning of year. July)

End oiyear. June30

Reconciliation from financial plan basis
(modified accrual) to hill accrual:

Total revenues
Total expenditures

496. 596

$ 115.484

$ 5,085.693
5.466.805

0
0
0

Revenues
Contributions from employees
Interest earnings

Total Tevenues

Posittve
Budget Actual (Nctive)

$ 5.068.168 S 5.083.709

_____

1.984
5.068.168 5.085.693

S 15.541
1.984

17.525

(86.693)
58.372
45.254
37.907
54.840

Actual

$ 4335.054
26.990

4.362.044

3.950.885
304.961
322.917
41,519

4.620.282

4.569.645
372,000
500.000
80.000

5.521.645

(453,477)

456,177

5 2.700

Revenues and appropriated lund balance
over (under) expeadhures

4.656.338
3 13.628
454.746
42.093

5,466.805

(381,112)

(381.112)

72.365 (258.238)

(456.177)

S (383.812) 5 (258.238)

Change in net assets $ (381,112)





Agency Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County for
individuals and local governments.

Social Services Fund This fhnd accounts for funds held by the
County Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain
individuals in the County.

Fines and Forfeitures Fund This fund accounts for fines and
forfeitures collected by the County that are required to be turned
over to the Franklin County Board of Education.

City Ad Valorem and Motor Vehicle Tax Fund - This fUnd
accounts for the proceeds of the Ad Valorem taxes that are
collected by the County on behalf of municipalities within the
County.

State Vehicle Interest Fund - This fUnd accounts for interest
penalties on vehicle Ad Valorem taxes that are collected by the
County on behalf of the State.

Jail Fund - This fUnd accounts for funds held by the jail for its
prisoners.





Franklin County, North Carolina
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Year Ended June 30. 2008

Exhibit 30

Social Services
Assets

Balance
July I,
2007 Additions Deductions

Balance
June30,

2008

Cash and cash equivaients S 45,865 S 219,043 $ 206,066 S 58,842

Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 45,865 $ 219,043 S 206,066 $ 58,842

rmn and Forfeitures
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ $ 408342 5 408,342 S -

Liabilities
Intergovernmental payable $ $ 408,342 $ 408.342 S -

Motor Vehicle Tn
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities

State Vehicle Interest
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
Intergovernmental payable

Jail Fund
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities

Totals - All Agency Finds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities
Intergovernmental payable

Total liabilities

S

$

$ 2,791

$ 2,791

$ 4,738

$ 4,738

S 53,394

$ 50.603
2,791

5 53,394

5 2,182.316

S 2,182,316

S 31,866

5 31.866

S 163,217

S 163,217

5 3,004,784

5 2,564,576
440,208

5 3,004,184

S 2,182316

$ 2,182,316

$ 32,387

$ 32,387

$ 159,384

$ 159,384

S 2,988,495

5 2,547,766
440,729

$ 2,988,495

$

$

$ 2,270

$ 2,270

S 8,571

$ 8,571

$ 69,683

5 67,413
2270

$ 69,683
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Exhibit 31

Franklin County, North Carolina
Geneml Fund

ScheduleofAd Valoreni Taxes Receivable
June 30. 2008

0
0 Fiscal Year

2001-2002
2006-2007
2005-2006
2004-2005
2003-2004
2002-2 003
2001-2002
2000-2001
1999-2000
1998-1999
1997-1998

Llncollected
Balance

June 302007

807,912
197,308
130,943
115,401
145,482
84.221
66,376
49.452
47,126

Collections
Additions And Credits

$ 29.829.374
537,732
44,207
19,204
13,360
8,685
5,284
4,038
2,804
1.813

___________________

44,215
$ 30.510,776

Uncollected
Balance

June 30,2008

3 1,132,141
270,180
153,101
111,739
102,041
136,797
78,937
62.338
46,648
45,3 13

2,139,235

Less: allowance for uncollectibla accounts:

Ad valorem (axes receivable - net

Reconcilement with revenues
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund

Reconciling items:
Amounts written off for 1997-1998 levy
Interest collected
Discounts and adjustments

Total reconciling items

(151,000)

5 1,988235

S 30,721,411

42,821
(145,565)
(107.891)
(2 10.635)

5 30,510,776

$ - $ 30.961,515

44,275
S 1.688,496 3 30,961,515

Total collections and credits



Lxhibit 32

Franklin County, North Carolina
Analysis oCCurrent Tax Levy

(‘ouncy - wide Levy
Fur (he Year Ended June 30,2008

Property
Total Levy

Original levy
Property taxed at current
year’s ‘ale

Molor vehicles taxed at
current year’s rate

Motor vehicles taxed at
prior year’s rate

260,343,708 0.822500%

147,259,331 0.822500%

2,141,327

1,211,208

2,141,327

1,211,208

Discoveries
Current year taxes
P,ior year taxes
Late listing
lien costs
Discounts
Abalements and releases

Property
Valuation

County-wide

Rate
Amount
of Levy

excluding
Registered

Motor
Vehicles

Registered
Motor

Vehicles

$ 3,238,972,036 0.822500% $ 26,640,545 $ 26,640.545 $

Penalties -

Total 3,646,575,075

138,680,608 0.822500%

Total S 3,785255,683

Less, uncollected taxes at June 30,2008

Curre*t year’s taxes collected

53,948 53,948 -

30,047,028 26,694,493 3,352,535

1,140,648 1,094,599 46,049
31345 31,345
15,462 ‘5,462 -

8,45! 8,45) -

(167,634) (167,634) -

(113,785) (42320) (71.465)

30,961,515 27,634,396 3,327,119

1,132,141 575,940 556,201

S 29,829374 $ 27.058,456 S 2.770.918

96.34% 97.92% 83.28%

a

Current lay collection percentage



Exhibit 33

0
0
0

Franklin County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County - wide Levy
For Lhe Year Ended June 30,2008

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio 100 %
Real Property $ 3,108,711.833
Personal Property 552.804,865
Public Service Companies’ 123,678,985Total Assessed Valuation $ 3,785,255,683

Tax Rateper $100 0.8225

Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements)’ $ 30,961.515

In addition to the County-wide nit the following table lists the levy by the County on
behalfof fire protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30,2008:

Fire Protection Districts 5 1,982,133

Percentage of appnised value has been established by statute.
‘Valuation of railroads, telephone conanies and other utilities as determined by the North Carolina Property

Tax Commission
‘The levy includes inlerest and penalties.



Exhibit 34

FranklIn County. ‘orth Carolina
Ten I argest Taxpayers

For the Year Ended June 30,2008

Taxpayer

Novo Macdisk
Progress Energy
Carolina Telephone
Wake Electric Membership Corporation
Den- Mark (‘onstruetion
Louisburg IIMA
Olde Litiertyt Club. Inc
I braid C. Bagwell
flexunoics
Sirchie Finger Print Labs

Total

Assessed
Type of Bsffiess Valuation

Manufacturing
Utility
Utility
Utility
Construction
Hospital
Manuthcturing
Manu fac wring
M.nifacwring
Manufacturing

S 102,03L987
49500,850
35.352.977
27.163.797
16.980,025
13.016,918
I 2 330.867
10,059,457
9246.274
9.155,905

S 284,839.057

Percentage or
Total Assessed

Va isatio

2.70%
1.31%
0.93%
0.72%
0.45%
0.34%
0.33%
0.27%
0.24%
0.24%

7.52%

I

0
0



0
0
0
0
0

STATISTICAL SECTION
0
0
0
0





Franklin County, North Carolina
Net Assets by Component
(accrual basis of accounting)

F.Y.E. F.Y.E.
2008 2001

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $22,829,989 $24.01 6,990
Resthcted - -

Unrestricted (30,128,888) (17,329,425)

Total governmental activities net assets (7,298,899) 6,687,565

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7,639,425 10,041,448
Unrestricted 6,098,885 3.760,491

Total business-type activities net assets 13,738,310 13,801,939

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 30,469,414 34,058,438
Restricted - -

Unrestricted (24,030,003) (13,568,934)

I Total primary government net assets $6,439,411 $20,489,504

Note: School Construction complete in 2007. School asset reverted back to school.

Note: The county began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34
in fiscal year 2004.



Franklin County, North Carolina
Changes in Net Assets, Last Three fiscal years

F.Y.E. F.Y.E. F.V.E. F.Y.E
2292 ZQQP 229Expenses

Governmental Activities
Generalgovernment $4,325,531 $7,154,891 33.772,123 $5,686,247Public Safety 17,743,122 14,440,777 12,328,799 11,462.533Economic and physical development 5,694.167 2,627,867 3,107,944 3,212.065Human services 18,321,190 18,251,014 17,358,323 15,821,501Cultural and recreation 1,728,413 1,383297 1,275,730 1,087,237Education 32,065,518 12,209,081 13,617,183 11,202,659Interest on long-term debt 2,508,273 1,697,224 1,351,352 1,146,215Total governmental activities expenses $82,386,214 557,764,151 $52.81 1,454 $49,618,457

Business-type activities
Water and Sewer Department 3,944,894 5,679,134 5,341.717 4,792,247

Total business-type activities expense 5,944,894 5,679,134 5,341,717 4,792,247

Total primaiy government expenses $88,331,108 $63,443,285 $58,153,171 554,410,704

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government $374,128 $690,055 $765,073 $853,792Public Safety 2,290,945 3.669.494 2,005,405 3,056,930Economic and physical development 2,709,670 2,509,345 1,227,746 1,245,584Human services 3,644,913 4,369.288 4,902,180 3,603.385Cultural and recreation 30,394 70,066 54,551 48,557Operating grants and contributions 10,347,360 6,490,849 6,805,149 7,485,903Capital Grants and Contributions 1,279,853 1,257,057 1.443,355 620,758

Total governmental activities program revenues 20,677,263 19,056,154 17,204,059 16.914,909

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Water and sewer 5,841.469 6,280,308 5,040,245 4,227,757Operating grants and contributions
- - - -Capital Grants and Contributions 40,000 400,000

. 540.400

Total business-type activities program revenues 5,881,469 6,680,308 5,040,245 4,768,157

Total primary government program revenues 526.558,732 325,736,462 $22,244,304 $21,683,066

continued

0
0



0
0
0
o F.Y.E. F.Y.E. FN.E.

2008 2007 2006 2005
0 Net (Expense)/Revenue

Q Governmental activities $61,708,951 $38,707,997 $35,607,395 $32,703,548
Busincss4ypeactivilies (63.425) 1,001,174 (301.472) (24,090)

Total primary government not expense $61,645,526 $39,709,171 $35,305,923 $32,679,458

General Revenues and Other Changes i. Net Assets
Governmental activities

Taxes:
PropertyTaxes $33,151,702 $30,083,554 528,883,215 $27,545,182
Sales Taxes 11,207,755 11,152,255 10,102.630 9,434,955

Investment Earnings 1,741.188 2.170,710 1.002.338 464,709
Miscellaneous - Unrestricted 1.313,221 1,513,097 1,460,931 683,157
Transfers 265,622 (298,492) (915,272) (1,341,117)

Total government activities 79,488 44,621,124 40,533,842 36,786,886

Business-type activities:
Invesunent earnings 265,418 131,441 58,743 37,881
Transfers (265,622) 298,492 915,272 1,341,117

Total business-type activities (204) 429,933 974,015 1,378,998

Toad p,imaiy government $47,679,284 $45,051,057 541,507,857 538,165,884

Chnge in Net Assets
Governmental activities ($14,029,463) $5,913,127 $4,926,447 $4,083,338
Business-typeactivities (63,629) 1,431,107 672,543 1,354,908

Total primary government ($14,093,092) $7,344,234 55,598,990 $5,438,246

Note: The county began to report accrural information when it implemented GASB Statement 34
in fiscal year 2004.



F
rw

U
In

C
o.

at
y.

N
ic

ib
C

s
rá

n
Fu

nd
B

al
an

ce
s,

G
ov

er
nm

e*
ls

I
Fu

nd
s,

La
M

le
n

ye
se

s
20

08
10

07
10

06
10

05
20

04
20

03
20

02
20

01
20

00
19

99
L

a
L

a
L

a
L

a
L

a
G

en
er

al
Fu

nd
R

es
cn

td
52

.4
81

.8
39

SJ
.1

06
.1

49
53

.3
19

.2
02

5)
88

5.
69

7
52

.3
40

.4
93

52
.9

97
)1

3
52

.5
88

.1
69

12
.1

43
,0

97
51

.7
99

.8
31

$1
78

44
89

U
nr

cs
en

td
-

re
sl

nc
lr

d
54

.3
0t

82
6

52
.7

60
.4

30
53

.4
13

.4
13

2.
66

5.
43

4
1.

32
48

61
1.

52
0.

05
0

2.
50

0,
64

0
1.

81
1.

76
1

2.
92

3.
94

8
I

89
6.

93
0

U
nr

es
cn

ed
-l

jn
de

si
gn

st
cd

11
45

5.
76

7
11

.7
30

.8
51

12
.1

64
.6

78
12

.8
70

.9
44

10
.0

53
.4

24
8.

98
8.

58
5

7.
17

3.
87

4
7.

74
5.

97
0

7.
28

6.
97

8
7.

33
0.

37
9

To
ta

l
ge

ne
ra

l
lw

,d
51

8.
24

6.
43

2
51

8.
59

7.
43

0
51

8.
89

7.
29

3
$1

7
42

2.
07

$
11

3.
69

1.
77

8
51

3.
50

5.
94

8
51

2.
26

2.
68

3
51

1.
70

0.
82

8
51

2.
01

0.
75

7
$1

10
1

1.
79

1

A
ll

oi
lw

r
G

ov
en

in
te

nl
al

Fw
id

s
R

e5
er

ve
d

4.
09

9.
95

9
2.

92
5.

14
0

1.
35

9.
77

1
1.

47
6.

70
0

1.
36

8.
31

7
1.

76
0.

03
1

1.
76

6.
71

5
74

2.
87

8
2.

21
6.

14
2

55
5.

74
5

U
nr

es
er

ve
d.

re
po

rt
ed

in
S

pe
ci

al
re

nn
ue

fi
nd

s
2.

29
0.

95
7

2.
12

0.
90

2
.8

36
.8

70
87

9.
38

6
3.

16
9.

56
9

2.
79

6.
09

9
2.

40
7.

47
7

2.
14

2.
11

9
1.

89
5.

61
6

2.
38

7.
12

8
C

ap
ita

l
pr

oj
ee

ls
fu

nd
s

1.
18

6.
41

5
13

.1
07

.5
22

(5
43

.1
29

1
1.

74
0.

32
0

29
1,

87
2

52
9,

21
7

17
8.

56
9

4.
64

1.
14

2
ç
I3

?
.l

2S
1.

20
5.

95
6

To
ta

l
al

l
ol

hc
r

go
ve

m
nI

en
la

l
fu

nd
s

58
.3

77
,3

31
51

8.
l&

i.5
70

$2
,6

55
.5

1’
54

.0
96

.6
66

$4
83

07
58

55
.0

85
.9

30
54

,3
52

.7
61

57
,5

33
.1

39
53

.9
74

.4
99

54
.1

48
.8

29

No
b

Fu
nd

B
al

an
ce

In
(‘a

pi
ba

l
Pr

oj
ec

ts
lu

nd
it

du
e

to
un

sp
en

t
B

on
d

Pr
oc

ee
ds

.

a



F
n

u
k

ft
a

C
..
.1

3.
N

.n
b

(a
n

o
n

.

•
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

C
b
a
n

I.
V

n
d

b
n
ia

ac
..

G
a
n
sm

a
.h

.l
F

en
d
,,

L
ai

l
T

ea
V

a
n

R
n
e
n
n
n

F
S

.L
F

S
t

F
V

.L
f
l’

L
L

V
L

V
t

F
.Y

.I
.

T
ax

is

Sa
ks

T
ax

C
ik

c
I
a

a
rd
s
t
s

t
—

In
l0

%
0

0
1

m
is

la
l

R
am

cu
d

l0
10

pt
08

51
10

91
.3

P
e
n

ta
ia

d
F

o
e

S
al

is
an

d
sa

x-
ic

.

In
x

a
la

e
I

F
an

io
p

C
ib

a
ia

a
a
a

T
o’

s)
a
a
lo

e

G
a
a
a
l
,-

a
n
a
i

P
.6

k
S

a
1

c
E

tc
..

e.
ii

c
ai

d
P

b
,1

ft
do

t e
la

p
re

al
It

w
io

n
S

a
v

.c
a

C
n

l,
.I

aa
d

lo
e
n
il

o
.

E
da

ac
at

.o

C
ap

it
al

o
w

l.
5

00
61

I
f
lO

t

FT
In

ci
pa

I

Ir
n

as
a

.6
5

0
4
6
0

fc
c,

I’
ot

aI
E

sp
o
id

i.
w

n

C
xc

as
c
ir

et
n

in
a

o
v
a

i—
I
c
3

4.
94

7.
61

1
6.

98
7.

06
4

3.
10

8.
26

3
4
.1

1
.0

4
7

1.
9)

0.
17

9
3.

42
5.

79
3

16
.9

19
.6

41
4.

13
0.

08
7

12
.3

17
.1

03
0.

90
9.

47
3

10
.9

32
.1

13
10

.0
42

,5
70

5.
39

7.
42

0
5,

12
8.

59
9

4.
89

6.
39

9
3,

59
3,

73
4

5.
29

3,
91

1
4.

29
7.

47
7

18
.4

10
.6

90
11

.9
37

.1
61

11
.4

15
33

3
16

29
2,

32
5

3)
30

5.
03

4
14

.6
31

31
4

.6
23

.5
97

1.
18

6.
12

0
1.

19
0,

61
7

1.
01

3.
41

3
3.

32
6.

09
4

1.
01

3.
44

1
3

,0
6

1
7

5
0

11
.2

09
.0

31
13

.6
17

.1
83

11
.2

02
.6

39
0.

00
4.

32
6

1
1
)0

3
.1

3
9

19
.9

02
.2

41
20

,2
80

.1
56

39
2.

63
3

44
3.

67
1

59
2.

65
8

34
9.

02
2

3,
33

7.
63

2
2

73
3.

77
8

2.
18

1.
71

2
2
.3

0
I,

S
9

2.
80

5.
20

0
2

39
1.

13
6

2.
50

8,
27

3
.6

97
,2

24
1.

33
1,

33
2

1.
30

2,
15

1
1.

31
1.

19
1

I
70

2.
37

1

96
.6

*0
.9

73
82

.3
00

.9
76

38
.0

86
.5

37
51

.8
86

.1
50

31
.1

7o
.0

25
49

36
41

.3
9t

19
.2

69
.5

th
II

I
37

5.
10

1,
53

3.
46

4
1.

23
3.

51
1

49
7.

30
9

1.
13

7.
91

5

2.
36

2.
90

1
2.

21
4.

61
3

2.
25

4.
35

9
1.

12
3.

45
3

I
74

0.
01

0
I

84
6.

46
7

31
.3

18
.3

67
43

.3
46

.6
11

45
.3

22
.7

05
12

.0
61

93
6

I
61

2.
61

3,
32

8.
96

*
.0

97
.5

38
(4

.8
32

.3
16

,

0
0

6
0

’
S

e
a
n
n

(U
se

s)

T
sa

aa
fo

s
lo

at
h
e

fe
d

s
T

n
.i

sW
s

O
xa

n
ci

li
a
6
d

Sa
le

o
fc

ap
.a

l
ci

sc
.,

‘a
‘4

D
(C

1m
90

0%
•c

(0
0

W
ai

lc
oy

F
)o

cc
cd

,
O

c
a
Ie

g
.I

n
a
n

d
a
o

F
8

o
c
c

o
f r

4
6
ai

d
d

40
61

P
a
.i

io
o
c
ld

e
d

d0
68

es
ci

ow

T
ot

al
ci

li
a

li
la

o
ci

w
L

a
d
e
n

9
5
0

1

N
d

th
a
Ic

s
II

fu
nd

ba
Ia

.c
c

44
.3

03
.0

60
,

13
.6

78
,7

83
1

13
.1

60
.8

99
1

3
3
0
3
.0

1
0

1.
43

6.
28

8
3.

21
1,

10
1

5.
09

0
34

2.
23

8
36

.3
82

-
4.

00
0.

90
0

53
2.

6*
0.

33
1

53
0.

12
6.

43
2

52
1.

17
0.

94
7

52
7.

60
8.

43
7

51
6.

41
4.

53
6

52
3.

26
6,

63
3

11
.2

37
75

3
31

.1
33

25
5

10
.1

01
.6

30
9,

45
4,

95
3

13
79

.3
44

6.
93

4.
07

4
29

9.
49

9
28

9.
43

0
19

9.
51

2
26

4.
17

3
27

3.
06

7
26

1.
22

4
63

7,
64

6
34

8.
13

1
30

2.
29

1
27

2.
33

3
10

9.
89

3
25

5.
11

9
9.

36
0.

24
9

7.
90

3.
70

8
8.

13
9.

32
3

7.
57

6.
65

5
7,

34
7

75
3

8.
87

56
27

2
2
6
*
3
9
4

2.
13

4.
76

6
3.

30
4.

18
0

1.
52

8.
96

5
1.

31
2.

11
3

1.
21

2.
20

7
9.

09
7.

44
3

9.
43

1.
13

7
7,

54
7,

31
3

7.
52

8.
73

3
7.

36
3.

44
2

7.
06

9.
11

9
I

73
9.

26
4

2.
14

3.
72

0
97

9.
33

8
41

0.
46

3
23

7.
47

4
33

7.
23

7
12

0.
17

9
17

2.
46

9
60

3.
77

3
42

5.
02

6
41

5.
69

1
24

6.
94

1

67
43

1.
41

4
63

.7
25

.1
68

51
.6

70
.2

31
33

.3
20

.1
92

51
.1

73
.3

34
30

.4
91

.3
21

51
2.

99
4,

73
3

$2
0,

09
7,

37
1

51
8.

91
3

99
4

51
7,

23
9,

19
3

6.
34

5.
46

0
63

9
1.

11
4

6.
21

7.
90

6
3.

82
4.

34
8

26
9,

21
2

23
0.

74
9

33
0.

08
9

23
0.

41
9

65
9.

51
2

1.
10

0.
52

2
1.

09
3,

69
3

1.
10

7,
21

9
11

.1
99

.1
15

0.
00

3.
94

9
11

.9
32

.8
*9

5.
34

3.
71

2
1.

02
6,

25
1

93
0.

89
8

1.
03

4.
66

1
1.

64
1.

85
0

6.
20

03
11

5
2
3
3
.0

2
6

4.
61

7.
77

2
4.

82
6.

69
9

56
9.

92
3

1.
20

9.
10

3
1.

14
4.

71
3

1.
64

1,
11

7
26

0.
53

0
48

6.
07

4
1
4
.7

3
4

34
9.

06
1

49
.6

93
23

4
45

.6
75

.5
79

46
.4

20
.2

43
37

20
9.

62
0

2.
16

1.
00

2
2.

89
1.

09
3

1.
49

6.
34

9
2.

37
8.

34
3

9.
01

7
15

1
9.

10
1.

31
2

8.
12

6.
70

7
7,

49
0.

67
4

.7
90

.9
94

82
2.

49
3

83
83

97
76

4.
34

6
14

,4
34

.6
II

13
.9

73
.9

49
13

.1
61

,4
14

12
,1

46
.9

99
1.

72
4.

62
9

9
7
3
3
4
4

96
4.

36
5

13
9.

19
3

7.
38

1.
81

5
6.

94
8,

73
6

7.
47

7.
17

5
7,

49
3.

61
1

9.
13

0,
30

3
6.

62
0.

16
7

7.
03

9,
49

3
6.

63
1.

09
3

1,
11

0.
80

1

I
90

9.
92

3

3.
92

6.
24

7)
3.

12
4.

50
2,

43
.9

33
.0

44
1

13
,0

70
.3

24
1

13
.6

10
.3

70
1

4.
37

2.
73

71
4.

19
1,

16
9

2,
82

6.
01

0
3.

03
7,

77
2

3,
72

9,
49

7
2.

30
7.

49
7

3.
37

2,
93

0
24

3,
72

8
5.

00
0

.
35

.1
30

17
7.

17
2

2.
39

7
0

.2
5.

49
3.

56
.9

65
8.

60
0,

00
0

34
.0

93
.0

00
10

4.
70

7
3.

13
0.

00
0

64
2.

03
0

3.
33

0.
09

0

43
.3

16
.9

30
i

9.
11

1.
33

0
33

.7
76

.0
13

13
33

,6
00

1
1.

10
7,

01
3

13
53

.1
01

1
99

7,
41

01

11
0.

13
8.

11
11

33
.2

00
.2

05
30

,0
64

3.
04

0.
39

3
15

6.
39

21
14

0.
51

3

(3
.0

00
.9

74
)

3.
05

4.
29

6

76
.1

77

0.
50

5.
09

0

I1
1.

78
3.

12
81

39
94

.9
10

)
2.

91
9.

74
5

87
.0

91
11

.1
30

32
91

12
.6

11
,5

23
1

3.
14

1.
71

1
1,

11
4,

61
9

6.
00

2.
66

5)
0.

61
ja

n
e
t

as
a
I
a
8

e
o

f
.0

9
_
H

a
l

09
09

41
1.

00
9.

SO
S.

7
1

3
%

7.
35

%
7.

31
%

3
.2

r.
8.

76
%

30
.3

9%
10

37
%

10
71

91
10

11
%



Franklin County, North Carolina
Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt per Capita
Last Ten Years

Net Ratio of Net Net General
Fiscal General General Obligation
Year Obligation Obligation Bonded

Ended Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt
June 30 Value Debt Assessed Value Population Per Capita

1999 1,971,218,315 18,750,000 0.9512% 45,288 414.02
2000 2,128,005,580 17,813,000 0.8371% 45.332 392.95
2001 2.153,377.354 16,800,000 0.7802% 47,545 353.35
2002 2,279,050,498 15,825,000 0.6944% 48,818 324.16
2003 2,372,672,790 14,850,000 0.6259% 51,079 290.73
2004 2,505,635,618 13,875,000 0.5538% 52,855 262.51
2005 3,103,720,609 14,600,000 0.4704% 54,181 269.47
2006 3,388,554,430 13,445,000 0.3968% 55,449 242.48
2007 3,553.765,823 32,235,000 0.9071% 55,886 576.80
2008 3,785,255,683 38,800,000 1.0250% 56,470 687.09

Source: NC Office of State Planning.
Franklin County Tax Assesor’s Office

I



0
0
o Franklin County, North Carolina

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General
Obligation Bonded Debt to Total General Governmental Expenditures
Last Tern Years

Ratio of Debto Fiscal Debt Service too Year Total Total General Total General

Q Ended Interest Debt Governmental Governmental

o June30 Principal on Bonds Service Expenditures Expenditures

1999 500,000 965,625 1,465,625 42,061,956 3.48%
2000 937,000 935,875 1,872,875 45,322,705 4.13%
2001 925,000 878,275 1,803,275 45,346,611 3.98%
2002 975,000 832,800 1,807,800 51,318,867 3.52%
2003 975,000 784,700 1,759,700 49,360,396 3.57%
2004 975,000 736,600 1,711,600 51,375,995 3.33%o 2005 975,000 688,250 1,663,250 53,886,850 3.09%o 2006 1,115,000 611,492 1,726,492 58,086,587 2.97%

o 2007 1,120,000 553,118 1,673,118 82,300,976 2.03%
2008 2,125,000 1,508,880 3,633,880 86,680,975 4.19%

Note: Includes General, Special Revenue and Capital Projects.
Does not include COP Debt. expended in the school construction fund
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0
0
o Franklin County, North Carolinao Property Tax Rates - Direct and All Overlapping Governments
o (Per $100 of Assessed Value)

Q Last Ten Years

Fiscal
Year

Ended Town of Town of Town of Town of Franklin Wake
June30 Bunn Franklinton Louisburg Youngsville County Forest Total

O
1999 0.7600 0.6000 0.4950 0.7100 0.8200 NA 3.3850
2000 0.7600 0.6200 0.4950 0.6600 0.8300 NA 3.3650o 2001 0.7600 0.6400 0.5 150 0.6600 0.8800 NA 3.4550o 2002 0.7600 0.6800 0.5250 0.6600 0.9450 NA 3.5700
2003 0.7600 0.6800 0.5250 0.6600 0.9995 NA 3.6245
2004 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5600 0.9995 0.5400 3.9545
2005 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5600 0.7900 0.5400 3.7450
2006 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5600 0.7900 0.5400 3.7450
2007 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5600 0.7900 0.5400 3.7450
2008 0.6900 0.6800 0.4850 0.5400 0.8225 0.5500 3.7675

Note: All tax rates are expressed in dollars of tax per $100 of assessed valuation. The tax
rate was adjusted in 1999 and 2005 due to revaluation.

The Town of Wake Forest annexed part of Franklin County in 2003.



Franklin County, North Carolina
Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Years

Fiscal Public
Year Service Total County

Ended Real Personal Company Assessed Tax Revenue
June 30 Property Property Property Value Rate Generated

1999 1,606,027,317 288,749,950 76,441,048 $1,971,218,315 0.8200 16,163,990
2000 1,710,691,564 340,301,621 77,012,395 $2,128,005,580 0.8300 17,662,446
2001 1,670,944,146 402,272,197 80,161,011 $2,153,377,354 0.8800 18,949,721
2002 1,737,762,751 451,096,588 90,191,159 $2,279,050,498 0.9450 21,537,027
2003 1,840,115,056 458,722,309 73,785,425 $2,372,622,790 0.9995 23,714,365
2004 1,924,008,866 508,064,402 73,562,350 $2,505,635.61 8 0.9995 25,043,828
2005 2,510,945,604 499,925,053 92,849,952 $3,103,720,609 0.7900 24,519,393
2006 2,573,038,787 719,423,960 96,091,683 $3,388,554,430 0.7900 26,769,580
2007 2,902.730,621 531,693,579 119,341,623 $3,553,765,823 0.7900 28,074,750
2008 3,086,546,778 552,724,295 123,678,987 53,762,950,060 0.8225 30,950,264

a
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Computation of Direct and Underlying Debt

o General Obligation Bonds

o Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2008

0
Net General Percent Amount
Obligation Applicable Applicable

Bonded debt To County To County

Direct:
Franklin County $38,800,000 100.00% $38,800,000

Underlying:
Town of Louisburg - 0.00% -

Town of Bunn 75,000 0.00% -

Town of Youngsville - 0.00% -

Town of Franldinton 1,350,000 0.00%

Totals $40,225,000 $38,800,000

Note: There is no general obligation debt in any other fund.
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Special Assessment Billing and Collections
General Fund
Last Ten Years

Fiscal
Year Special Special

Ended Assessment Assessment
June 30 Billings Collections

1999 - 23,043
2000 - 25,145
2001 88,257 38,725
2002 - 54,558
2003 - 55,543
2004 - 66,963
2005 - 61,519
2006 - 61,252
2007 - 42,076
2008 - 1,860

Note: Franklin County completed paving of streets for the
North Raleigh Farms and Inglewood subdivisions.
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Franklin County, North Carolina

Other Statistical Information

JUNe 30,2008

Date of establishment
Form of government Commissioner/Manager

Employees:
Full-time, regular 490

Part-time, regular 85

Franklin County facilities and services
Sheriff protection

Number of stations 2

Number of deputies and officers 60

Number of patrol units 6

Inspections
Residential Building permits issued 507

Cultural and recreational
Number of libraries 4

Number of volumes 102,500

Water and Sewer
Number of customers 2,689

Average daily consumption (in gallons) 587

Miles of water mains 152

Miles of sanitary sewers 37

Facilities and services not included in the primary government

Hospitals
Number of hospitals
Number of patient beds

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity

Education
Number of school systems 2

Number of community colleges
Number ofjunior colleges

Recreation
Golf Courses 3

Swimming Pools - All Private 5
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o Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and Other

o Matters Based

o On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

To The Board of County Commissioners
Franklin County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major find, and the
aggregate remaining find information of Franklin County, North Carolina as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprises Franklin County’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2008. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Franklin County’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Franldin County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Franklin County’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A control deficiency exists when designed or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects Franklin County’s ability to initiate, authorize, rec

102W. Spring Street PO. Box 1366 Oxford, NC 27565 (919) 693-5196fax (919) 693-7614
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ord, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of Franidin
County’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected
by Franklin County’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by Franiclin County’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited pulpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

ComDIiance and Other Matters

As a part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Franklin County’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

a
We noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have
reported to management of Franklin County in a separate letter dated November 29, 2008.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
others within the organization, members of the Board of County Commissioners, and federal and
the State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

à&.ua0t Cat /irza Sizea

Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
November 29, 2008
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Report 0. Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major Federal
Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With 0MB Circular A-

133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Board of County Commissioners
Franklin County, North Carolina

ComDliance

o We have audited the compliance of Franklin County, North Carolina, with the types of

o compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB)

Q
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Govenunental Auditors in
North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of itso major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. Franklin County’s major federal

o programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying

O schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is theo responsibility of Franldin County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

• Franklin County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
0MB Circular A-l33, Audits of States. Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, 0MB Circular A-133, and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Franklin County, North
Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Franklin County’s
compliance with those requirements.

102 W. Spring Street P.O. Box 1366 Oxford, NC 27565 (9(9) 693-5 196fax (919) 693-7614
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In our opinion, Franklin County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Franklin County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Franklin
County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Franklin County’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned fimctions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the entity’s
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of a compliance requirement of a State program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Franklin County’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by Franklin County’s internal a
control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
others within the organization, members of the Board of County Commissioners, and federal and
State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(3tctcA frana6()naan.g CM0

Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
November 29, 2008
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Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major State
Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With

Applicable Sections of 0MB Circular A-I 33 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Board of County Commissioners
Franklin County, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Franklin County, North Carolina, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued
by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for
the year ended June 30, 2008. Franklin County’s major State programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major State programs is the responsibility of Franklin County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Franklin County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
applicable sections of 0MB Circular A- 133, as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental
Auditor’s in North Carolina and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards,
applicable sections of 0MB Circular A-l33, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a

102 W. Spring Street P.O. Box 1366 Oxford, NC 27565 (919) 693-51 96fax (919) 693-7614
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direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about Franklin County’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on
Franklin County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Franklin County, North Carolina complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over ComDliance

The management of Franklin County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to State programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Franklin
County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major State program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Franklin County’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency,
or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a
State program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of a
compliance requirement of a State program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented
or detected by Franklin County’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State program will not be prevented or detected by Franklin County’s internal
control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
others within the organization, members of the Board of County Commissioners, and federal and



State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

é&Zzoa tiarA jAms 65wazv4c .1Z

Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, LLP
o Certified Public Accountants

o November 29, 2008
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Friakibi County. North Catalina
Schedule of Findings rid Questioned Costs

For the Fisal Year Elided June30, 2008

I. Sinv of Aoditu’s R,ala

0
Fial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued Unqualified

Q Internal control over financial reporting

Q Material wealcnesi(es) identified? _Ya .jjJo

Q Significant Deficiency(s) identified that are not

O
considered to be material weaknesses _Yes .j_Noae reported

Nonconiplisice material to flaricial statements noted __Yes _&_No

Federal Awfl

Q Internal control over major federal programs:

Q Material weakaess(es) idealiSed? _Ycs _j4o

() Significant Deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses _Yes a_.None reported

o Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualiflea

O Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

D
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-I))? _Yes 1_No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Ntams Name of Federal Proewn or Clter

93.778 Medical Assistance
93.515 Sobaldized Child Care Cluster
93.596
93.667
93.558
10.551 Food SlampClusler
10.561

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: S 1.580,591

Auditeequalifledaslow-riskaudilee? _cYes _No

Stale Awfl

Internal Control Over Major Programs:

Material weaicness(es) identified? _Yes ..sNo

Sipiflca.t Deficleacy(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses ,_,Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for m.cr state progrn Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
irs accordance with section 510(a) otCircular A.1331 _Yes ..&34o
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Franklin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008

II. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

III Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

IV State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



Frnldln Coasty, North Carelin
Conective Action Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008

II. Financial Statement Findings

No’ie reported.

III Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Ccts

None repofled.

IV State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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Franklin County. North Carolina
Schedule ofPrior Year Audit Findings

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008
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___________



Franidia County. North C. rofln.
Schedule of Ewendes otFedaal ad State Awards

For abe Year Ended June 30 2003

Fadnl Pni-hjn.,g)i F (COcci &
aDA Pm-tvora) Sale LociflinThe krnWr N.aiber F., ‘

________

N C C........... —?t taea
Disinon ci Wan Qtdliy (dn.agb 11w Raid Ceniar)

- 40000
Nt Dd04aCa1 ad P.I&Sr

SCPCG,

________________

91.010
Nt

AtM
- 3*000Pvb&SBmt&i Ceptid Find

364,145ToiittC DPcL...,.A...
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